

 
 

The Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria)
Regular Board Meeting

AGENDA
 

Monday, September 23, 2019, 7:30 p.m.
Tolmie Boardroom, 556 Boleskine Road

Pages

A. COMMENCEMENT OF MEETING

The Greater Victoria School District wishes to recognize and acknowledge the
Esquimalt and Songhees Nations, on whose traditional territories, we live, we
learn, and we do our work.

A.1 Approval of the Agenda 7:30 PM

Recommended Motion:
That the September 23, 2019 agenda be approved.

A.2 Approval of the Minutes 7:35 PM

a. Approval of the June 19, 2019 Special Board Minutes 6

Recommended Motion:
That the June 19, 2019 Special Board Minutes be approved.

b. Approval of the June 24, 2019 Regular Board Minutes 9

Recommended Motion:
That the June 24, 2019 Regular Board Minutes be approved.

c. Approval of the June 25, 2019 Special Board Minutes 18

Recommended Motion:
That the June 25, 2019 Special Board Minutes be approved.

A.3 Business arising from the Minutes

A.4 Student Achievement



A.5 District Presentations 7:40 PM

a. Facilities Summer Update

A.6 Community Presentations (5 minutes per presentation) 7:50 PM

a. Angela Carmichael, PAC President, George Jay Elementary

b. Scott Fox, Victoria High School land use

c. Chris Grieve, Victoria High School land use

d. Corey Kowal, Victoria High School land use

e. Anne Downton, District EA, View Royal Elementary School

f. Andrea Walker Collins, George Jay Elementary School

B. CORRESPONDENCE

B.1 Letter from the District of Saanich re Greater Victoria Crossing Guard
Program

21

B.2 Letter from the Town of View Royal re Greater Victoria Crossing Guard
Program

23

C. TRUSTEE REPORTS 8:15 PM

C.1 Chair's Report 24

C.2 Trustees' Reports (2 minutes per verbal presentation)

a. Trustee Whiteaker 26

b. Trustee Duncan - BCSTA Trustee Representative Update 27

D. BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS

D.1 Education Policy and Directions Committee 8:25 PM

a. Minutes from the September 9, 2019 meeting- Information only 29

D.2 Operations Policy and Planning Committee 8:30 PM

a. Minutes from the September 16, 2019 meeting- Information only 32

Page 2 of 153



b. Recommended motions from the September 16, 2019 meeting.

Recommended Motion:
That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater
Victoria) approve the recommended motions from the
September 16, 2019 Operations Policy and Planning Committee
meeting.

a. Regulation 3323, Purchasing Services 36

Recommended Motion:
That the Board of Education of School District No. 61
(Greater Victoria) accept revised Regulation 3323,
Purchasing Services as presented.

b. George Jay Elementary Name Change

Recommended Motion:
That the Board of Education of School District No. 61
(Greater Victoria) direct the Superintendent,
pursuant to Policy and Regulation 1421, and
applicable legislation, to establish a committee to
explore changing the name of George Jay
Elementary School.

Page 3 of 153



D.3 Audit Committee Report 8:45 PM 44

a. Recommended motions from the September 16, 2019 meeting.

Recommended Motion:
That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater
Victoria) approve the internally restricted surplus appropriation
of $14,827,885 as shown on Schedule 2 of the 2018-2019
Audited Financial Statements, being held for school level funds
$3,400,360 (Note A), unspent project budgets $4,843,799 (Note
B), purchase order commitments $419,972 (Note C), and the
previously approved budgeted surplus of $4,125,958 (Note D).

Recommended Motion:
That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater
Victoria) approve the June 30, 2019 unrestricted operating
surplus of $2,037,796 (Note E) to be carried forward and
applied towards the projected deficit in 2020-2021.   

Recommended Motion:
That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater
Victoria) approve the transfer of $639,270 to Local Capital in
2018-2019 for the Student Device Replacement Reserve
($339,270), the Technology Replacement Reserve ($200,000)
and the Childcare Capital Reserve ($100,000).

Recommended Motion:
That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater
Victoria) approve the Audited Financial Statements of School
District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) for the year ended June 30,
2019; and that the Board Chair, the Superintendent and the
Secretary-Treasurer be authorized to execute these statements,
where applicable, on behalf of the Board.

Recommended Motion:
That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater
Victoria) approve the schedules as required by the Financial
Information Act for the period July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019.

Page 4 of 153



E. DISTRICT LEADERSHIP TEAM REPORTS

E.1 Superintendent's Report 9:05 PM

a. Monthly Report 150

Recommended Motion:
That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater
Victoria) receive the Superintendent's report as presented.

b. Anaphylaxis Aggregate Report 151

c. Trustee Questions 152

E.2 Secretary-Treasurer's Report 9:20 PM

a. Monthly Report 153

Recommended Motion:
That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater
Victoria) receive the Secretary-Treasurer's report as presented.

F. QUESTION PERIOD (15 minutes total) 9:25 PM

G. PUBLIC DISCLOSURE OF IN-CAMERA ITEMS

H. NEW BUSINESS/NOTICE OF MOTIONS

H.1 New Business

H.2 Notice of Motions

I. ADJOURNMENT 9:45 PM

Recommended Motion:
That the meeting be adjourned.

Page 5 of 153



 

 

  
 

The Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 
June 19, 2019 Special Board Meeting - Tolmie Boardroom, 556 Boleskine Road 

 
 
 

MINUTES 
 
Present: 
Trustees Jordan Watters, Chair, Ann Whiteaker, Vice-Chair, Nicole Duncan, Tom Ferris, Angie Hentze, 
Elaine Leonard, Diane McNally, Ryan Painter and Rob Paynter 
 
Administration: 
Shelley Green, Superintendent of Schools, Katrina Stride, Acting Secretary-Treasurer, Colin Roberts, 
Associate Superintendent, Greg Kitchen, Associate Superintendent, Simon Burgers, District Principal, 
Languages and Multiculturalism and Vicki Hanley, Recording Secretary 
 
The meeting was called to order at 7:08 p.m. 
 
Chair Watters recognized and acknowledged the Esquimalt and Songhees Nations, on whose traditional 
territories, we live, we learn, and we do our work. 
 
Introductions were made around the board table. 
 
A. COMMENCEMENT OF MEETING 
 
 A1. Approval of the Agenda 
 

It was moved by Trustee Whiteaker and seconded:  

That the June 19, 2019 Agenda be approved. 
Motion Carried Unanimously 

 
 
B.  PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS  
 
 B1. Kathryn Allan-Kwasnica, Cloverdale Traditional School, attended the Special Board 

meeting to speak against the proposed new catchments and the possibility of Cloverdale 
being removed as a District catchment school. 

 
 B2. Jen Meadows, Cloverdale Traditional School, attended the Special Board meeting to 

speak against the proposed new boundary catchments as it relates to Cloverdale 
Traditional School and to encourage Trustees to allow the traditional school model to 
remain at the school. 

 
 B3. Starr Munro, Cloverdale Traditional School, attended the Special Board meeting to 

speak against the proposed new boundary catchments as it relates to Cloverdale 
Traditional School and to encourage Trustees to lighten the impact that the changes may 
bring. 

 
 B4. Ashley Wheaton, South Park Family School, attended the Special Board meeting to 

speak against the proposed new boundary catchments as it relates to South Park Family 
School and the public consultation process for the review. 

 
 B5. Jenn Sutton, South Park Family School, attended the Special Board meeting to speak 

against the proposed new boundary catchments as it relates to South Park Family School 
and encouraged Trustees to keep the school as a District catchment school.  

Page 6 of 153



 

The Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) June 19, 2019 Special Board Meeting Minutes Page 2 

 
 

 

 B6.  Allison Hyatt, South Park Family School, attended the Special Board meeting to speak 
against the proposed new boundary catchments and stressed her discouragement with 
respect to the impact that it would have on South Park Family School and the loss to parent 
involvement and participation. 

 
 B7. Carrie Smart, Margaret Jenkins Elementary School, attended the Special Board meeting 

to speak against the new pathway for French immersion students as it relates to Margaret 
Jenkins Elementary School. 

 
 B8. Rachel Maser and Family, Margaret Jenkins Elementary School, attended the Special 

Board meeting to speak against the new pathway for French immersion students as it relates 
to Margaret Jenkins Elementary School. 

 
 B9. Justin Hodkinson, Sir James Douglas Elementary School, attended the Special Board 

meeting to express his appreciation to Trustees for their work on the boundary review as it 
relates to the Fairfield and Rockland area. 

 
 B10. Lincoln Shlensky, Margaret Jenkins Elementary School, attended the Special Board 

meeting to speak against the new pathway for French immersion students as it relates to 
Margaret Jenkins Elementary School. 

 
 B11. Corey Kowal, George Jay Elementary School, attended the Special Board meeting to 

speak to Trustees with regards to the overcrowding at George Jay Elementary School. 
 
 B12. Gypsy Fisher, South Park Family School, attended the Special Board meeting to speak 

about her positive experience at South Park Family School as it relates to the boundary 
review and proposed changes to the catchment for that school. 

 
 B13. Robin Gravely – Doncaster Elementary School, attended the Special Board meeting to 

thank Trustees for removing the recommendation related to Doncaster Elementary School 
on the boundary review. 

 
 
C. CHAIR’S REPORT  
 

 Chair Watters thanked the group of public speakers for attending and speaking at the meeting. 
Chair Watters provided information on the format for the rest of the meeting and reminded everyone 
of the board meetings scheduled for June 24 and June 25, 2019. 

 
 
D. SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT  
 

 D1. Boundary Review Presentation 
 

 Associate Superintendent, Colin Roberts, provided an overview of the entire boundary review 
process and how it progressed through the past school year including the public consultation 
process and the surveys conducted.  

 
 On behalf of the Board, Chair Watters thanked the catchment boundary review team for all of 

their efforts with the review and the many hours of work they put in.  
 
 Discussion ensued amongst the Trustees with questions of clarification being asked of 

Associate Superintendent Roberts. 
 

Page 7 of 153



 

The Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) June 19, 2019 Special Board Meeting Minutes Page 3 

 
 

 

 Questions were received from the public and answered by Associate Superintendent Roberts. 
Chair Watters advised the public that questions that were not answered during the meeting will 
be answered via the FAQ link on the District website within a few days. 

 
 

E. SECRETARY-TREASURER’S REPORT - None   
  
 
F. ADJOURNMENT 
   
          It was moved by Trustee Leonard and seconded:  

That the meeting be adjourned. 
Motion Carried Unanimously 

 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:47 p.m. 
 
 

CERTIFIED CORRECT 
 
 
_________________________________ ___________________________________ 
Chair Secretary-Treasurer 
 

Page 8 of 153



 

 

 
 
 

 
The Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 

June 24, 2019 Regular Board Meeting - Tolmie Boardroom, 556 Boleskine Road 

 
 
 

MINUTES 
 

Present:  
Trustees, Jordan Watters, Chair, Ann Whiteaker, Vice-Chair, Nicole Duncan, Tom Ferris, Angie Hentze, 
Elaine Leonard, Diane McNally, Ryan Painter and Rob Paynter 
 
Administration: 
Shelley Green, Superintendent of Schools, Katrina Stride, Acting Secretary-Treasurer, Deb Whitten, 
Deputy Superintendent, Colin Roberts, Associate Superintendent, Greg Kitchen, Associate 
Superintendent, Chuck Morris, Director, Facilities Services, Lisa McPhail, Communications Officer and 
Vicki Hanley, Recording Secretary 
 
The meeting was called to order at 7:41 p.m. 
 
Chair Watters recognized and acknowledged the Esquimalt and Songhees Nations, on whose 
traditional territories, we live, we learn, and we do our work. 
 
Introductions were made around the board table. 
 
 
A. COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING 
 
 A1. Approval of the Agenda  
 

It was moved by Trustee Painter and seconded:  

That the June 24, 2019 Agenda be approved with the following additions: 
 
C2. Trustees’ Reports  
       f)  Trustee Ferris 
       g) Trustee Painter 
 
E2. Secretary-Treasurer’s Report 
       c)  2020-2021 Five Year Capital Plan 
 
H1. New Business 
       a)  Trustee Painter – Write a letter to the Minister of Education 
 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

  
 
 A2. Approval of the Minutes 
 

a)  It was moved by Trustee Painter and seconded:  

That the May 27, 2019 Regular Board Minutes be approved. 
Motion Carried Unanimously   

 
 
A3. Business arising from the Minutes - None 
  

Page 9 of 153



The Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) June 24, 2019 Regular Board Meeting Minutes page 2 

 

 
A4.  Student Achievement - None 
 

 
 A5.  District Presentations  
 

a) Chair Watters recognized and acknowledged Audrey Smith for her time as President 
of the Victoria Confederation of Parent Advisory Councils.  

  
 

  A6.   Community Presentations  
 

a) Helen Poulin, attended the Board meeting on behalf of the GVTA and spoke to 
Trustees with regards to French Immersion programs and advocating for more 
resources in the District. 

 
b) Tonya Winton, attended the Board meeting on behalf of the GVTA and spoke to 

Trustees with regards to French Immersion programs in the District and advocating 
for more bilingual Educational Assistant’s in the District. 

 
c) Alex Greig and Tayler Jernslet, attended the Board meeting on behalf of the GVTA 

and spoke to Trustees about local contract bargaining and speaking in favour of hiring 
more teachers. 

 
d) Angela Carmichael, George Jay, Co-PAC President, attended the Board meeting to 

speak to Trustees about the boundary review process and the overcrowding currently 
at George Jay Elementary School. 

 
e) Kathryn Allan-Kwasnica, a parent with students at Cloverdale Traditional School, 

attended the Board meeting to speak against the boundary review process and her 
concerns about how the changes will impact Cloverdale Traditional School. 

 
f) Hillary Hagel, a parent of a student attending Cloverdale Traditional School, attended 

the Board meeting to speak to Trustees about the boundary review process and her 
concerns about splitting siblings up if the proposed changes are passed. 

 
g) Jenn Sutton, PAC Chair from South Park Family School, attended the Board meeting 

to speak against the boundary review process as it relates to South Park Family 
School. 

 
h) Kristil Hammer, PAC representative from South Park Family School, attended the 

Board meeting to speak to Trustees about the boundary review process as it relates to 
South Park Family School. 

 
i) Allison Bottomley, PAC representative from South Park Family School, attended the 

Board meeting to speak against the proposed new district boundaries and how it will 
affect South Park Family School. 

 
 
B. CORRESPONDENCE  
 
 B1.  Letter to City of Victoria re Bike Path at Quadra Elementary 
 

A letter to the City of Victoria regarding the proposed bike path at the rear of Quadra 
Elementary school was provided for information purposes.   

 
 
 
 

Page 10 of 153



The Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) June 24, 2019 Regular Board Meeting Minutes page 3 

 

 
 

 B2.  Letter to Victoria Regional Transit Commission re Free Transit  
 

A letter to the Victoria Regional Transit Commission regarding the proposal for free transit 
for youth was provided for information purposes. 

 
 
C. TRUSTEE REPORTS 
 
   C1.     Chair’s Report  
 

Chair Watters expressed condolences on behalf of the Board, to the family of a District 
student who passed away during a recent field trip.  
 
Chair Watters referred Trustees to her written report included in the agenda package and 
highlighted a few items from her report.  

 
             C2.     Trustees’ Reports  
 

a) Trustees Duncan and Painter referred Trustees to their annual committee reports for 
the Advocacy Ad Hoc Committee and the Public Engagement Ad Hoc Committee 
contained within their agendas.  

 
b) Trustee Duncan referred Trustees to her BCSTA Trustee Representative report 

contained within their agendas.  
 
c) Trustee Hentze referred Trustees to her annual committee reports for the Gender 

and Sexuality Alliance Committee and Facilities Committee contained within their 
agendas. 

  
d) Trustee McNally referred Trustees to her annual community liaison assignments 

report, Equity Ad Hoc Committee report and Policy Advisory Committee report  
contained within their agendas and highlighted a few of the meetings she attended. 

 
e) Trustees Whiteaker referred Trustees to her monthly report contained within their 

agendas. 
 

f) Trustee Ferris provided a verbal report on his meetings over the past month and   
thanked the Senior Leadership Team for their hard work over the past school year. 

                                       
g) Trustee Painter provided a verbal report of the various meetings and activities he 

participated in over the past month. 
 
  

 D. BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 

 D1. Education Policy and Directions Committee 
 
a) The June 3, 2019 Education Policy and Directions Committee meeting minutes were 

received for information. 
 

b) Chair Watters referred to the draft meeting minutes and presented the following 
recommended motion. 

 
         It was moved: 

i) That the Board of Education of School District No.61 (Greater Victoria) approve 
a sibling priority in Regulation 5118.2 for those families who have siblings 

 

Page 11 of 153



The Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) June 24, 2019 Regular Board Meeting Minutes page 4 

 

impacted by a change to their current school boundary in the 2020/2021 school 
year before establishing the current boundary proposals. 

    
Discussion ensued amongst the Trustees with a recommendation being made to 
amend the proposed revision to Regulation 5118.2. 
 

         It was moved by Trustee Painter and seconded: 

i) That the motion “That the Board of Education of School District No.61 (Greater 
Victoria) approve a sibling priority in Regulation 5118.2 for those families who 
have siblings impacted by a change to their current school boundary in the 
2020/2021 school year before establishing the current boundary proposals” be 
amended to move Enrollment Priority #3.5 to #2.5 in Regulation 5118.2, 
Student Enrollment and Transfers. 

 

   
Further discussion ensued amongst the Trustees with a recommendation being made 
to refer this motion to the September 23, 2019 Board of Education meeting. 
 

         It was moved by Trustee Paynter and seconded: 

i) That the motion “That the Board of Education of School District No.61 (Greater 
Victoria) approve a sibling priority in Regulation 5118.2 for those families who 
have siblings impacted by a change to their current school boundary in the 
2020/2021 school year before establishing the current boundary proposals” be 
referred to the September 23, 2019 Board of Education meeting. 

Motion Defeated 

 

    For: Trustees Paynter, Painter and Hentze 
    Against: Trustees Leonard, Ferris, Watters, Whiteaker, Duncan and McNally  

 
Chair Watters referred Trustees back to the amendment moved by Trustee Painter and 
further discussion ensued. 

 

i) That the motion “That the Board of Education of School District No.61 (Greater 
Victoria) approve a sibling priority in Regulation 5118.2 for those families who 
have siblings impacted by a change to their current school boundary in the 
2020/2021 school year before establishing the current boundary proposals” be 
amended to move Enrollment Priority #3.5 to #2.5 in Regulation 5118.2, 
Student Enrollment and Transfers. 

Motion Defeated 

 

       For: Trustee Painter  
   Against: Trustees Leonard, Ferris, Watters, Hentze, Duncan, McNally and Whiteaker 
 
   Chair Watters called for the vote on the original main motion. 
 

i) That the Board of Education of School District No.61 (Greater Victoria) approve 
a sibling priority in Regulation 5118.2 for those families who have siblings 
impacted by a change to their current school boundary in the 2020/2021 school 
year before establishing the current boundary proposals. 

Motion Carried 

 

For: Trustees Leonard, Ferris, Painter, Watters, Hentze, Duncan, McNally and 
Whiteaker 

                                     Against: Trustee Paynter 
 

 
 
Chair Watters referred to the meeting minutes and the following recommended motion. 

 
 
 
 

Page 12 of 153



The Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) June 24, 2019 Regular Board Meeting Minutes page 5 

 

 
          It was moved: 

 ii) That the Board of Education of School District No.61 (Greater Victoria) direct 
the Superintendent to provide a report directly from the Superintendent to the 
Board in February 2020 that provides: 1. the history of gifted education and 
related funding in SD61 and provincially to the present 2. complete information 
on funding changes provincially and in SD61 over the last ten years that have 
impacted gifted education in SD61 and the province 3. information regarding 
provision of targeted gifted education in SD61 over the last ten years  4. In-
depth information explaining any proposed service delivery model / models of 
service under consideration for the 2019-2020 school year and forward for 
students designated “gifted” in SD61 in order that the Board may consider how 
best to allocate resources to serve the vulnerable gifted student population, 
before a service model that differs from current practice is put in place. 

 

    
Discussion ensued amongst the Trustees with a recommendation being made to 
amend the motion. 

 
                         It was moved by Trustee McNally and seconded: 

ii) That the motion “That the Board of Education of School District No.61 (Greater 
Victoria) direct the Superintendent to provide a report directly from the 
Superintendent to the Board in February 2020 that provides: 1. the history of 
gifted education and related funding in SD61 and provincially to the present  2. 
complete information on funding changes provincially and in SD61 over the last 
ten years that have impacted gifted education in SD61 and the province  3. 
information regarding provision of targeted gifted education in SD61 over the 
last ten years  4. In-depth information explaining any proposed service delivery 
model / models of service under consideration for the 2019-2020 school year 
and forward for students designated “gifted” in SD61 in order that the Board 
may consider how best to allocate resources to serve the vulnerable gifted 
student population, before a service model that differs from current practice is 
put in place” be amended to replace the word “ten” with “eighteen” in both #2 
and #3. 

Motion Defeated 

 

             For: Trustees McNally, Duncan, Painter and Paynter 
             Against: Trustees Leonard, Ferris, Watters, Hentze and Whiteaker  
 

Further discussion ensued amongst the Trustees with a recommendation being 
made to amend the motion. 

 
     It was moved by Trustee Duncan and seconded: 

That the motion “That the Board of Education of School District No.61 (Greater 
Victoria) direct the Superintendent to provide a report directly from the 
Superintendent to the Board in February 2020 that provides: 1. the history of 
gifted education and related funding in SD61 and provincially to the present  2. 
complete information on funding changes provincially and in SD61 over the 
last ten years that have impacted gifted education in SD61 and the province  3. 
information regarding provision of targeted gifted education in SD61 over the 
last ten years  4. In-depth information explaining any proposed service delivery 
model / models of service under consideration for the 2019-2020 school year 
and forward for students designated “gifted” in SD61 in order that the Board 
may consider how best to allocate resources to serve the vulnerable gifted 
student population, before a service model that differs from current practice is 
put in place” be amended to remove the word “directly” and strike #1 and #2, 
replace the word ‘ten’ with ‘two’ in the new #1 and amend the new #2 to read 
“Information explaining the current and any proposed service delivery 
model/models……” 

Motion Carried 

 

                                     For: Trustees Duncan, Painter, Paynter, Watters, Hentze, McNally and Whiteaker Page 13 of 153



The Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) June 24, 2019 Regular Board Meeting Minutes page 6 

 

                                     Against: Trustees Leonard and Ferris  
 

Further discussion ensued amongst the Trustees with a recommendation being 
made to refer the motion to a committee meeting. 

 
                         It was moved by Trustee Leonard and seconded: 

ii) That the motion “That the Board of Education of School District No.61 
(Greater Victoria) direct the Superintendent to provide a report from the 
Superintendent to the Board in February 2020 that provides: 1. Information 
regarding provision of targeted gifted education in SD61 over the last two 
years  2. Information explaining the current and any proposed service delivery 
model / models of service under consideration for the 2019-2020 school year 
and forward for students designated “gifted” in SD61 in order that the Board 
may consider how best to allocate resources to serve the vulnerable gifted 
student population, before a service model that differs from current practice is 
put in place” be referred to the September 9, 2019 Education Policy and 
Directions Committee meeting. 

Motion Carried 

 

For: Trustees Leonard, Ferris, Paynter, Painter, Hentze, McNally, Whiteaker, 
Watters 

  Against: Trustee Duncan 
                                           
     It was moved: 

iii) That the Board of Education of School District No.61 (Greater Victoria) direct 
the Board Chair to write relevant funders to advocate for the maintenance of 
school crossing guard funding. 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 

 
  

  D2. Operations Policy and Planning Committee   
 

a) The June 10, 2019 Operations Policy and Planning Committee draft meeting minutes 
were received for information. 

 
b) Chair Watters referred to the meeting minutes and presented the following 

recommended motion. 
  
                  It was moved: 

i) That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 
recognize that the breakdown of the stable climate and sea level under which 
human life has developed constitutes an emergency, and that in declaring a 
climate emergency the Board: 

a) direct the Superintendent to develop a Climate Action Plan that 
establishes targets and strategies commensurate with the 
Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change’s call to limit warming to 
1.5 degrees; 

b) direct the Superintendent to report back on specific actions and 
resources that could be included in future correspondence to the 
provincial or federal government; and 

c) demonstrate leadership by directing the Board Chair to write letters to 
other school boards, local MLAs, and Provincial government 
encouraging them to declare climate emergencies and develop targets 
and strategies to combat climate change. 

Motion Carried Unanimously  

  

 
 Chair Watters referred to the meeting minutes and the following recommended 

motion. 
   
 Page 14 of 153



The Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) June 24, 2019 Regular Board Meeting Minutes page 7 

 

 
 
                             It was moved: 

ii) That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) direct 
the Superintendent to prepare a report, on or before the November Operations 
Policy and Planning Committee Meeting, that provides an analysis of the costs 
of the Greater Victoria Schools becoming a Living Wage Employer. 

 

 
Discussion ensued amongst the Trustees with a recommendation being made to 
amend the motion. 

 
          It was moved by Trustee Painter and seconded: 

ii) That the motion “That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater 
Victoria) direct the Superintendent to prepare a report, on or before the 
November Operations Policy and Planning Committee Meeting, that provides 
an analysis of the costs of the Greater Victoria Schools becoming a Living 
Wage Employer” be amended to add the words “and living hours employer” at 
the end of the motion. 

Motion Carried 

 

        For: Trustees Painter, Paynter, McNally, Hentze and Whiteaker 
                           Against: Trustees Leonard, Ferris and Duncan 
       Abstain: Trustee Watters 
 

Further discussion ensued amongst the Trustees with a recommendation being 
made to refer the amended motion to the Audit Committee. 
 
     It was moved by Trustee Whiteaker and seconded: 

 ii) That the amended motion “That the Board of Education of School District No. 
61 (Greater Victoria) direct the Superintendent to prepare a report, on or before 
the November Operations Policy and Planning Committee Meeting, that 
provides an analysis of the costs of the Greater Victoria Schools becoming a 
Living Wage Employer and living hours employer” be referred to the Audit 
Committee. 

Motion Carried 

 

     For: Trustees Paynter, Painter, Hentze, Duncan, McNally, Leonard and Whiteaker 
                                        Against: Trustee Ferris 
                                        Abstain: Trustee Watters 
 

Chair Watters referred to the meeting minutes and the following recommended 
motion. 

  
           It was moved: 

iii) That the Board of Education of School District No.61 (Greater Victoria) direct 
the Superintendent to instruct staff to participate in the development of a formal 
business plan for the Spectrum Turf and Rink (STAR) Project.  To be 
developed with the STAR Committee, SD61, and community partners. 

Motion Carried 

    

     For: Trustees Paynter, Painter, Hentze, McNally and Whiteaker  
                                        Against: Trustees Ferris, Leonard and Duncan  
                Abstain: Trustee Watters 
 
 
 D3.   Audit Committee Quarterly Report 
 
        It was moved by Trustee Paynter and seconded:  

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) accept the 
March 2019 Quarterly Financial Report as presented to the Audit Committee. 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

Page 15 of 153



The Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) June 24, 2019 Regular Board Meeting Minutes page 8 

 

 
  
 E. DISTRICT LEADERSHIP TEAM REPORTS 
 

             E1.  Superintendent’s Report  
 

a) Superintendent Green presented her monthly report and thanked the boundary review 
team for their work throughout the process.  

 
         It was moved by Trustee Whiteaker and seconded:  

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) receive the 
Superintendent’s report as presented. 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 

 
b) Superintendent Green responded to questions from Trustees with regards to solar 

panels and the Baragar Systems data as it relates to the boundary review process. 
 

                         
  E2.      Secretary-Treasurer’s Report 

 
a) Acting Secretary-Treasurer Stride referred Trustees to the information contained in 

their agendas with respect to new accounting standards that came into effect in 2018 
with respect to related party transactions.     

 
b) Trustee Paynter provided background on the Policy Sub-Committee meetings and 

referred Trustees to the report contained in their agenda packages with respect to 
revised Policy 1200, Superintendent.  

 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) approve 
revised Policy 1200 Superintendent. 

 
Discussion ensued amongst the Trustees with a recommendation being made to refer 
the motion to the September Education Policy and Directions Committee meeting. 
 

         It was moved by Trustee Leonard and seconded: 

That the motion “That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater 
Victoria) approve revised Policy 1200 Superintendent” be referred to the September 
9, 2019 Education Policy and Directions Committee meeting. 

Motion Defeated 

      For: Trustees Leonard, Watters, Ferris and Hentze 
                 Against: Trustees McNally, Paynter, Painter, Duncan and Whiteaker 
 
  Chair Watters called for the vote on the main motion. 
 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) approve 
revised Policy 1200 Superintendent. 

Motion Carried 

  For: Trustees Ferris, Hentze, Duncan, Watters, McNally, Painter, Paynter and Whiteaker 
      Abstain: Trustee Leonard  
 

c) Chuck Morris, Director of Facilities Services, presented the 2020-2021 Five Year 
Capital Plan and responded to Trustee questions.   

 
                                It was moved by Trustee Leonard and seconded: 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) approve for 
submission to the Ministry of Education, the 2020-2021 Greater Victoria School 
District No. 61 Five Year Capital Plan. 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

Page 16 of 153



The Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) June 24, 2019 Regular Board Meeting Minutes page 9 

 

 
F.         QUESTION PERIOD   

 
              Associate Superintendent Roberts responded to the following question from the public: 
 

1. I attended the special boundary review meeting on June 19th. I submitted 3 questions that 
were not answered in the meeting. We were told that answers to our questions would be 
made available on the FAQ section of the Boundary Review website. We were also told that 
all of the answers from the meeting would be available under the same heading or section. I 
have looked but cannot find the answers. Why have these answers not yet been made 
available? 

  
The answers to all questions were added to the FAQ page of the Boundary Review Process 
on the District website. 

 
 

         G. PUBLIC DISCLOSURE OF IN-CAMERA ITEMS  
 
 G1.  Annual Student Withdrawal Report and PRC/Diversion   
  
 G2.  Annual Student Unusual Exclusion Report    
 

 
 H.  NEW BUSINESS/NOTICE OF MOTIONS 

 
H1. New Business  
 

a) Trustee Painter – Write a letter to the Minister of Education 
 

Trustee Painter presented his motion and provided a rationale. Discussion ensued 
amongst the Trustees. 
 

            It was moved by Trustee Painter and seconded: 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) direct the 
Chair to write a letter to the Minister of Education confirming the districts 
preference for maintaining the restored class size and composition language and 
superior local provisions to ensure that we maintain small class sizes and 
reasonable class composition within the district. 

Motion Defeated 

               For: Trustees McNally, Paynter and Painter 
  Against: Trustees Whiteaker, Duncan, Watters, Leonard, Ferris and Hentze 

 
              H2. Notice of Motions 
 

 
I. ADJOURNMENT 
 

It was moved by Trustee Ferris and seconded: 

That the meeting be adjourned. 
Motion Carried Unanimously   

 
The meeting adjourned at 10:48 p.m. 
 

 
CERTIFIED CORRECT 

 
              

Chair       Secretary-Treasurer 

Page 17 of 153



 

 

  
 

The Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 
June 25, 2019 Special Board Meeting - Tolmie Boardroom, 556 Boleskine Road 

 
 
 

MINUTES 
 
Present: 
Trustees Jordan Watters, Chair, Ann Whiteaker, Vice-Chair, Nicole Duncan, Tom Ferris, Angie Hentze, 
Elaine Leonard, Diane McNally, Ryan Painter and Rob Paynter 
 
Administration: 
Shelley Green, Superintendent of Schools, Deb Whitten, Deputy Superintendent, Katrina Stride, Acting 
Secretary-Treasurer, Colin Roberts, Associate Superintendent, Greg Kitchen, Associate Superintendent,  
Simon Burgers, District Principal, Languages and Multiculturalism, Lisa McPhail, Communications Officer 
and Vicki Hanley, Recording Secretary 
 
The meeting was called to order at 7:09 p.m. 
 
Chair Watters recognized and acknowledged the Esquimalt and Songhees Nations, on whose traditional 
territories, we live, we learn, and we do our work. 
 
 
A. COMMENCEMENT OF MEETING 
 
 A1. Approval of the Agenda 
 

It was moved by Trustee Whiteaker and seconded: 

That the June 25, 2019 Agenda be approved. 
Motion Carried Unanimously 

 
 
B. CHAIR’S REPORT  
 
 Chair Watters provided Trustees with an outline of the meeting agenda including debating the thirty 

recommendations that have been presented in the third phase of the Boundary Review Report.  
Chair Watters suggested that Bylaw 9368, Procedure, be amended to allow for Trustees to speak 
more than once to a motion or topic, which would allow for a more fulsome discussion on the 
recommendations under review. 

 
                It was moved by Trustee Ferris and seconded: 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) amend Bylaw 9368, 
Procedure, under Section 104.02 “Trustees shall be permitted to debate only upon a motion, as 
herein provided, and each trustee shall be limited to the opportunity to speak once to any motion, 
unless the motion has been amended, for a majority vote of the Board. The proposer of a motion 
shall be given the opportunity to open and close debate of his motion. The mover of the principle 
motion shall have the right to speak for five minutes to the motion and shall be allowed five 
minutes to conclude the debate on the motion,” for the Special Board of Education meeting of 
June 25, 2019, to allow for Trustees to speak more than once to a motion under discussion. 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 18 of 153



 

The Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) June 25, 2019 Special Board Meeting Minutes Page 2 

 
 

 

C. SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT   
 
 C1. Boundary Review Final Presentation 
  
 Associate Superintendent, Colin Roberts, provided Trustees with an overview of the entire 

boundary review process including a clarification of the Baragar Systems data which was 
provided a few days earlier. Discussion ensued amongst the Trustees with questions of 
clarification being asked of Associate Superintendent Roberts and Superintendent Green. 

 
It was moved by Trustee Ferris and seconded: 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) accept all 
recommendations as presented in the Phase 3 Boundary Review Report. 

 
 Further discussion ensued amongst the Trustees with a suggestion being made to amend 

Recommendation #1 of the Boundary Review Report. 
 

It was moved by Trustee Whiteaker and seconded: 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) amend 
recommendation #1 of the Boundary Review Report as follows “That the Board of 
Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) maintain South Park Family School 
as a district wide catchment school and pursue alternative #1 as proposed by the Parent 
Advisory Council of South Park Family School.” 

Motion Defeated 

   For: Trustees Whiteaker, Painter, Paynter and Duncan 
   Against: Trustees Ferris, Watters, Leonard, Hentze and McNally 
 

 Further discussion ensued amongst the Trustees. Chair Watters called for the vote on the 
main motion. 

 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) accept all 
recommendations as presented in the Phase 3 Boundary Review Report. 

Motion Carried 

   For: Trustees Leonard, Ferris, Watters, McNally, Hentze and Whiteaker 
             Against: Trustees Painter, Paynter and Duncan 
 
     It was moved by Trustee Whiteaker and seconded: 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) direct the 
Superintendent to work with school communities and parent advisory councils affected by 
the boundary review to support them through the 2019-2020 school year to implement the 
changes. 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

   
     It was moved by Trustee Painter and seconded: 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) direct the 
Superintendent to meet with School District No. 93 to discuss the impact and potential 
alternatives as a result of the District’s plan to re-open Sundance Elementary for the school 
year starting in September 2020. 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 
 
D. SECRETARY-TREASURER’S REPORT - None  
 
 
 

Page 19 of 153



 

The Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) June 25, 2019 Special Board Meeting Minutes Page 3 

 
 

 

E. ADJOURNMENT 
   
           It was moved by Trustee Ferris and seconded:  

That the meeting be adjourned. 
Motion Carried Unanimously 

 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:19 p.m. 
 

CERTIFIED CORRECT 
 
 
_________________________________ ___________________________________ 
Chair Secretary-Treasurer 
 

Page 20 of 153



Page 21 of 153



Page 22 of 153



 
 
 
 
 
September 5, 2019 
 
Greater Victoria School District    VIA EMAIL: jwatters@sd61.bc.ca  
Board of Education 
556 Boleskine Road 
Victoria, BC   V8Z 1E8 
 
Dear Chair Watters and Board Trustees, 
 
Re: Greater Victoria Crossing Guard Program 

 
Thank you for your letter dated August 28th, 2019. It was received at our September 3, 2019 
Council meeting and I was asked to provide a response on behalf of View Royal Council. 
 
Council is well aware of the importance of the crossing guard program, and that is why we have 
financially supported it for over 20 years. However, it seems to our Council that the model is 
broken: 

• there are different models in different municipalities with different funding models; 

• the providers of the service must continually appeal to municipal councils for grants-in-
aid to keep the program running; 

• there is no involvement by the School Board (at least in View Royal); and, 

• there has been a succession of non-profit organizations that run the program.  
 
We feel there must be a better way to facilitate the program and that a meeting is necessary 
with all stakeholders to discuss how we move forward. If the status quo is to be maintained, the 
Town of View Royal will be reconsidering the level of ongoing funding.  
 
View Royal is committed to working towards solutions. We encourage you to consider 
participating in the establishment of a sustainable, ongoing funding model to ensure that this 
essential service may continue to meet the needs of our communities.  
 

Sincerely,  

 

 

 

David Screech 

Mayor 

cc. Mayor Desjardins, Township of Esquimalt 

Mayor Haynes, District of Saanich 

Mayor Helps, City of Victoria 

Mayor Murdoch, District of Oak Bay 

Greater Victoria Crossing Guards Association 

Page 23 of 153

mailto:jwatters@sd61.bc.ca


 
 

 

 

TO:  Board of Education 

FROM:  Jordan Watters, Board Chair 

RE:  Chair’s Report  

DATE:  September 18, 2019 

Back to school is an exciting time full of possibility. There’s something about the autumn air that signals a 

return to routine, reconnection with friends, as well as the transition to new classrooms, new schools, and 

new adventures. The Board appreciates all the work that goes into getting our schools ready for our 

students and families, and we recognize all the challenges and opportunities a new school year presents. 

Thank you to our staff for your dedication and your warmth as you strive to provide each of our students 

with a positive connection to learning. We wish you a successful and fun year ahead! 

On August 29th, I joined Victoria Police Chief Del Manak, Minister of Education Rob Fleming and 

members of the George Jay community for an event reminding our community that as school returns, so 

does their need to exercise extreme caution in school zones. Many of our families and students walk or 

ride their bikes to school and safety is our top priority.  

 

Over the summer I attended the National Trustee Gathering on Indigenous Education hosted by the 

Canadian School Board Association in Toronto. At the gathering I was privileged to learn from National  

School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 
556 Boleskine Road, Victoria, BC  V8Z 1E8 
Phone (250) 475-4106   Fax (250) 475-4112 

Chair: Jordan Watters  Vice-Chair: Ann Whiteaker 

   Trustees: Nicole Duncan, Tom Ferris, Angie Hentze, 

        Elaine Leonard, Diane McNally, Ryan Painter, Rob Paynter 

Page 24 of 153



 
 

 

 

Chief Perry Bellegard, Kevin Lamoureux, Dr. Susan Dion (Decolonizing Our Schools), and Malcolm 

Saulis (Indigegogy: An Indigenous Informed Educational Approach Rooted in Love and Healing). I also 

learned from a student panel and a discussion of the role of an Indigenous Graduation Coach working to 

close the graduation gap in Keewatin-Patricia District School Board in northwestern Ontario. Finally, I had 

the privilege of hearing Dr. Gabor Mate present “Peer Orientation: Why Children are Stressed, Why 

Parents and Teachers are Disempowered and How to Restore a Healthy Balance in Adult-Child 

Relationships.” It was two days of heartfelt connection and learning, and I am humbled by the opportunity 

to learn from so many powerful leaders.  

Trustees have also begun work on renewing our Strategic Plan. The Board met August 24th to review the 

work that unfolded in the 2018-2019 school year, and on August 30th we began to work on articulating our 

collective goals and priorities. This exciting work will continue through the fall.  

Looking forward, I will be attending the BCSTA Board Chairs meeting in October and the Joint Liaison 

meeting for Chairs, Superintendents, Secretary Treasurers and the Ministry of Education. BCSTA Trustee 

Academy will be help November 28 to 30th this year, and while I will be unable to attend I hope other 

Trustees will consider attending – the theme is “Growing Together: Planting the Seeds for Inclusion.” Also 

in November, the Ministry of Education has extended the opportunity for a small group of Trustees to 

attend the MoE Early Learning Summit – I hope I have secured a spot for our Board, however at the time 

of writing this has not been confirmed.  

 

 

Page 25 of 153



Trustee Board Report 

Submitted September 18, 2018 

By Trustee Ann Whiteaker 

 

Calendar  

June 27, 2019 - Trustee update with BCPSEA 

July 2, 2019 - Hiring Panel Secretary Treasurer 

July 4, 2019 - Hiring Panel Secretary Treasurer 

July 7, 2019 - Pride Parade 

August 12, 2019 - Chair planning meeting 

August 14, 2019 – BC School Centered Mental Health Coalition 

August 24, 2019 – Board Strategic Planning 

August 27, 2019 – CTV, Times Colonist interviews re: Bus Passes 

August 28, 2019 – CBC interview re: Bus Passes 

August 30, 2019 – Board Strategic Planning 

September 3, 2019 – Chair Planning meeting 

September 4, 2019 – Mental Health funding announcement at Esquimalt High re: Ministry of Education 

& Ministry of Addiction and Mental Health 

September 13, 2019 – BC School Centered Mental Health Coalition 

September 16, 2019 – Audit committee 

September 17, 2019 – Chair meeting 

 

Welcome Back!  

 

 

 

 

Page 26 of 153



September 23, 2019  

 

Feedback or questions may be addressed to Nicole Duncan via email: nduncan@sd61.bc.ca 1 

 

 

BCSTA Advocacy: Correspondence to Review 

July 29, 2019: The Director General, Tobacco Control Directorate, Controlled Substances and 
Cannabis Branch Health Canada, Van Loon reply to BCSTA President Higginson:  

https://bcsta.org/advocacy-motion-response-e-cigarettes-and-vapour-products/  

August 15, 2019: BCSTA President Higginson’s letter to Minister Fleming and Minister Heyman 
advocating for funding for new school construction, the retrofitting of current buildings and 
operation guidelines to aid school districts to meet goals set out in CleanBC’s report. 

https://bcsta.org/advocacy-implementing-cleanbc-plan-for-school-districts/  

https://www2.gov.bc.ca/assets/gov/environment/climate-
change/action/cleanbc/cleanbc_2018-bc-climate-strategy.pdf 

August 22, 2019: BCSTA President Higginson’s letter to Minister Fleming, Minister Mark and 
UBCM President Singh advocating for a recruitment and retention strategy to focus particularly 
on remote and rural areas of the provinces.  

https://bcsta.org/advocacy-recruitment-and-retention-strategy/  

September 4, 2019: BCSTA President Higginson’s letter to Minister Fleming advocating “a 

review of currently restrictive Ministry Area Standards for school construction to ensure that 

we are investing in and building school facilities that support the revised curriculum and fully 

support and promote the development of educated citizens.” 

https://bcsta.org/advocacy-ministry-review-of-area-standards-for-school-construction/  

Canadian School Board Association Report: 

BCSTA provides regular reports on its activities to the Canadian School Boards Association.  You 

can access the latest CSCA Report for April 2019 via the following link:  

http://bcsta.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/04/Spring_2019_04_csba_report.pdf  

The Canadian School Boards Association (CSBA) has put out a call for presentations for Congress 
2020. This event will be held in Banff, Alberta, Canada from July 2-5, 2020. The proposal 
submission deadline is October 11, 2019.  

Funding Model Review (FMR):  

You will recall that in February 2019 Provincial Councillors were informed that the next steps of 
the FMR process will be focussed on gathering additional input to inform implementation 

Page 27 of 153

https://bcsta.org/advocacy-motion-response-e-cigarettes-and-vapour-products/
https://bcsta.org/advocacy-implementing-cleanbc-plan-for-school-districts/
https://www2.gov.bc.ca/assets/gov/environment/climate-change/action/cleanbc/cleanbc_2018-bc-climate-strategy.pdf
https://www2.gov.bc.ca/assets/gov/environment/climate-change/action/cleanbc/cleanbc_2018-bc-climate-strategy.pdf
https://bcsta.org/advocacy-recruitment-and-retention-strategy/
https://bcsta.org/advocacy-ministry-review-of-area-standards-for-school-construction/
http://bcsta.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/04/Spring_2019_04_csba_report.pdf


September 23, 2019  

 

Feedback or questions may be addressed to Nicole Duncan via email: nduncan@sd61.bc.ca 2 

 

approaches. The following areas were highlighted as requiring additional work before 
implementation: financial management, online learning, adult and continuing education, 
inclusive education. We were also informed that School Districts will be made aware of any 
changes in advance to support 2020/21 budgeting and planning processes. 
 
A Funding Model Implementation Report was released on 17 June 2019. The Report provides 
additional information about what has been discussed in working groups to date and next steps 
for the review process leading up to the reporting deadline of fall 2019.  
 
The Funding Model Implementation Report can be accessed in full via the following link: 
https://www2.gov.bc.ca/assets/gov/education/administration/resource-
management/k12funding/funding-model-review/funding-model-implementation-report-june-
2019.pdf  
 
According to the latest BCSTA update the working groups have concluded and their reports will 
be submitted to the Minister of Education soon. BCSTA noted that none of the Ministry of 
Education’s working groups considered recommendation nine. Recommendation nine sets out 
that the Ministry should base funding allocations for school-age educational programming on 
the number of students, rather than on the number of courses being taken and that it phase 
out the current course-based funding model by the 2020/21 school year. BCSTA decided to lead 
a review process to consider recommendation nine that includes representation from the 
following sector partners: BCASBO, BCSSA, BCPVPA and BCSTA. BCSTA is working to create 
guidelines and recommendations regarding the implementation of recommendation nine which 
will be submitted to the Ministry of Education. 
 
Reminders:  

 Provincial Council, Motion Submission Deadline, 20 September 2019. 

BCSTA Hub: 

Many useful resources are available to Trustees via the BCSTA Hub including: motion guidance, 

BCSTA motion tracking and examples of policies from other District’s across British Columbia. 

The BCSTA Hub may be accessed via the following website: https://bcstahub.org/  

Significant Dates:  

 Provincial Council, 25 & 26 October 2019. 

 VISTA, 25 & 26 October 2019. 

 The BCSTA 2019 Trustee Academy will take place November 28 - 30, 2019 at the Hyatt 

Regency Hotel in Vancouver. 

 

Page 28 of 153

https://www2.gov.bc.ca/assets/gov/education/administration/resource-management/k12funding/funding-model-review/funding-model-implementation-report-june-2019.pdf
https://www2.gov.bc.ca/assets/gov/education/administration/resource-management/k12funding/funding-model-review/funding-model-implementation-report-june-2019.pdf
https://www2.gov.bc.ca/assets/gov/education/administration/resource-management/k12funding/funding-model-review/funding-model-implementation-report-june-2019.pdf
https://bcstahub.org/



Education Policy and Directions Committee 
September 9th, 2019 – Tolmie Board Room 

 

 
MINUTES 

 
Committee Members Present:  Nicole Duncan - Chair, Tom Ferris, Diane McNally, Ryan Painter  
Regrets: Board Chair – Jordan Watters 
 
Other Trustees Present: Rob Paynter 
 
Administration: Shelley Green - Superintendent, Deb Whitten - Deputy Superintendent, Colin Roberts 
- Associate Superintendent, Greg Kitchen - Associate Superintendent, Louise Sheffer – Director, 
District Team, Harold Caldwell – Director, District Team, Cindy Graff - GVTA Representative, Jane 
Massy - CUPE 947 President, Jodi Whiteman - VCPAC President, Vicki Hanley – Executive Assistant, 
Note taker 
 
The meeting was called to order at 7:09 p.m. 
 
Chair Duncan welcomed everyone to the meeting.   
 
Chair Duncan also recognized and acknowledged the Esquimalt and Songhees Nations, on whose 
traditional territories we live, we learn and we do our work. 
 
 
A. COMMENCEMENT OF MEETING 
 
  A1. Approval of the Agenda 
 

      It was moved by Trustee Ferris: 

That the September 9, 2019 Education Policy and Directions agenda be approved. 
Motion Carried Unanimously 

 
 A2.  Approval of the Minutes 
 

      It was moved by Trustee Painter: 

That the June 3rd, 2019 Education Policy and Directions Committee Minutes be 
approved. 

Motion Carried Unanimously  

 
  A3. Business Arising from the Minutes – None  
 
 
B. PRESENTATIONS TO THE COMMITTEE  
 

B1. George Jay Elementary / Barbara Lelj 
 
B2. George Jay Elementary / Brianna Day 
 
B3. George Jay Elementary, PAC President / Angela Carmichael 
 

 
 
 

Page 29 of 153



Education Policy and Directions Committee Meeting 
Minutes of September 9th, 2019  Page 2 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 
C. NEW BUSINESS 

 
C1.   Introduction of Student Representatives  

 
Superintendent Green advised that there was no student representative available for the 
meeting. 

 
C2. Parent Education Fund  
 

Deputy Superintendent, Deb Whitten, referred Trustees to the information that she 
provided in their agendas with respect to the Parent Education Fund and how the funds 
were allocated in the 2018-2019 school year. Deputy Superintendent Whitten stated that 
$1,190 of the funding was unused during the year and would be carried over to this year 
for use towards PAC applications. 

 
C3. Learning Teams Survey Results 
 

Director of the Learning Team, Louise Sheffer, referred Trustees to the information that 
was provided to them in their agenda packages and the results of the survey that was 
conducted with District teachers and CUPE staff. The purpose of the survey was to gather 
feedback on the District’s Learning Support Operational Plan’s goals. Discussion ensued 
amongst the Trustees with questions of clarification being asked of Ms. Sheffer and 
Deputy Superintendent, Deb Whitten. 

 
C4. Gifted Education- Trustee McNally 

 
Trustee McNally advised that she wished to withdraw this motion and provided a rationale 
on why she was withdrawing the motion. 
 
Chair Duncan accepted the withdrawal of the motion. 

   

That the Board of Education direct the Superintendent direct the Superintendent to 
provide a report to the Board in February 2020 that provides: 1. Information regarding 
provision of targeted gifted education in SD61 over the last two years 2. Information 
explaining the current and any proposed service delivery model / models of service 
under consideration for the 2019-2020 school year and forward for students 
designated “gifted” in SD61 in order that the Board may consider how best to allocate 
resources to serve the vulnerable gifted student population, before a service model 
that differs from current practice is put in place. 
 

 Motion Withdrawn 

 
 
D. NOTICE OF MOTION - None 
 
 
E. GENERAL ANNOUNCEMENTS - None 
 
 
F. ADJOURNMENT 

 
    It was moved by Trustee Painter              : 

That the meeting be adjourned. 

Page 30 of 153



Education Policy and Directions Committee Meeting 
Minutes of September 9th, 2019  Page 3 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 
The meeting adjourned at 8:08 p.m. 

Page 31 of 153




Operations Policy and Planning Committee Meeting 

September 16, 2019 – Tolmie Board Room 

 

 
 

REGULAR MINUTES 
 
Committee Members Present: Rob Paynter, Committee Chair, Angie Hentze, Elaine Leonard, Ann 
Whiteaker, Jordan Watters (Ex Officio) 
 
Other Trustees Present: Nicole Duncan, Diane McNally 
 
Administration: Shelley Green, Superintendent of Schools, Katrina Stride, Acting Secretary-Treasurer, 
Deb Whitten, Deputy Superintendent, Colin Roberts, Associate Superintendent, Greg Kitchen, 
Associate Superintendent, Chuck Morris, Director of Facilities Services,  Andy Canty, Director, 
Information Technology for Learning, Tammy Sherstobitoff, District Principal, Human Resource 
Services, Vicki Hanley, Executive Assistant 
 
The meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
A. COMMENCEMENT OF MEETING 
 
  A1. Acknowledgement of Traditional Territories 
 

  Chair Paynter recognized and acknowledged the Esquimalt and Songhees Nations, on 
whose traditional territories we live, we learn, and we do our work. 

 
 A2. Approval of the Agenda 
 

      It was moved by Trustee Hentze: 

That the September 16, 2019 Operations Policy and Planning Committee meeting 
agenda be approved. 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 
 A3.  Approval of the Minutes 
 

      It was moved by Trustee Hentze: 

That the June 10, 2019 Operations Policy and Planning Committee meeting minutes be 
approved. 

Motion Carried Unanimously  

 
  A4. Business Arising from the Minutes 
 

a) The Quadra Warehouse Name change motion postponed from the June 10, 2019 
meeting has been placed on the October 21, 2019 agenda.  

 
 
B. PRESENTATIONS TO THE COMMITTEE  
 

B1. Scott Fox, Victoria High School  
 

Mr. Fox spoke against the Caledonia Project and the proposed land swap between the 
School District and the Capital Regional Housing Corporation (CRHC) at Victoria High 
School. 

Page 32 of 153



Operations Policy and Policy Committee Meeting 
Minutes of September 16th, 2019  Page 2 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 
 
B2. Corey Kowal, Victoria High School  
 

Ms. Kowal spoke against the Caledonia Project at Victoria High School and the loss of 
green space at the school site if the project and land swap between the School District and 
the CRHC proceeds. 

 
B3. Skye Stegenga, George Jay Elementary School 
 

Ms. Stegenga thanked staff for engaging in ways in which to mitigate the space issues and 
loss of programs at George Jay Elementary School and spoke against the Caledonia 
Project at Victoria High School. 

 
B4. Angela Carmichael, George Jay Elementary School 
 
 Ms. Carmichael spoke in favour of changing the name of George Jay Elementary School. 
 
B5. Brianna Day, George Jay Elementary School 
 

Ms. Day spoke about the overcrowding issues and loss of programs at George Jay 
Elementary School. 

  
 

C. SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT – None 
 

 
D. PERSONNEL ITEMS 

 
 D1.    Staffing Update 
 

District Principal of Human Resource Services, Tammy Sherstobitoff, provided Trustees 
with an update with regard to teaching staff levels at this point in the school year and the 
need to hire more teachers and more specifically French immersion teachers. The District 
hosted two hiring fairs over the past year and will continue to recruit more teachers to the 
District. 

 
 
E. FINANCE AND LEGAL AFFAIRS 
 

E1.     eSCRIBE Software Update 
 

Acting Secretary-Treasurer, Katrina Stride, provided Trustees with an update with respect 
to the purchase of electronic meeting software for minute taking as per a motion that was 
passed in November 2018. Ms. Stride highlighted the process to date and the way in 
which it will be implemented over the next few months. Ms. Stride answered questions of 
clarification from Trustees. 

 
 E2.     Regulation 3323 – Purchasing Services 
   

Acting Secretary-Treasurer, Katrina Stride, referred Trustees to information in their 
agendas with regards to updating Regulation 3323, Purchasing Services. Ms. Stride 
pointed out the one minor change with regards to Standing Purchase Orders and the 
increase from $500 to $1000 with respect to the purchase of equipment. Ms. Stride 
answered questions of clarification from Trustees. 

Page 33 of 153



Operations Policy and Policy Committee Meeting 
Minutes of September 16th, 2019  Page 3 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 
 

           It was moved by Trustee Whiteaker: 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) accept revised 
Regulation 3323 Purchasing Services as presented. 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 
 
F. FACILITIES PLANNING 
 

F1. Water Quality Update 
 
Director of Facilities Services, Chuck Morris, provided Trustees with an update with 
regards to the water quality testing at all school sites within the District. Mr. Morris advised 
Trustees that a dedicated plumber has been assigned to taking and testing water samples 
and replacing filters and faucets where needed. VIHA and the Ministry of Education have 
been kept informed and are satisfied with the progress to date. Mr. Morris answered 
questions of clarification from Trustees. 

 
 
G. PUBLIC DISCLOSURE OF IN-CAMERA ITEMS - None 
 
 
H. NEW BUSINESS 
 

H1. Trustee Questions 
 

Superintendent Green responded to questions from Trustees with regards to the Strong 
Start program and outdoor learning space at George Jay Elementary and the Vic High land 
use, community consultation and disposition. 

 
H2. Trustee Watters – George Jay Elementary 
 
 Trustee Watters presented the motion and provided a rationale. 
 
  It was moved by Trustee Watters: 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) direct the 
Superintendent, pursuant to Policy and Regulation 1421, to establish a committee to 
explore changing the name of George Jay Elementary School, and that this be done 
following a fulsome George Jay Elementary School focused consultation process. 

 
Discussion ensued amongst the Trustees with recommendation being made to table the    
motion. 

  
             It was moved by Trustee Leonard: 

That the motion “That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater 
Victoria) direct the Superintendent, pursuant to Policy and Regulation 1421, to 
establish a committee to explore changing the name of George Jay Elementary 
School, and that this be done following a fulsome George Jay Elementary School 
focused consultation process” be tabled to the October 21, 2019 Operations Policy 
and Planning Committee meeting. 

Motion Defeated 

          For: Trustee Leonard 
          Against: Trustees Hentze, Paynter and Whiteaker 

Page 34 of 153



Operations Policy and Policy Committee Meeting 
Minutes of September 16th, 2019  Page 4 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 
 

Further discussion ensued amongst the Trustees with a suggestion being made to amend 
the motion. 

 
It was moved by Trustee Whiteaker: 

That the motion “That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater 
Victoria) direct the Superintendent, pursuant to Policy and Regulation 1421, to 
establish a committee to explore changing the name of George Jay Elementary 
School, and that this be done following a fulsome George Jay Elementary School 
focused consultation process” be amended to strike the words “and this be done 
following a fulsome George Jay Elementary School focused consultation process.” 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 
Further discussion ensued amongst the Trustees with a suggestion being made to 
amend the amended motion. 

 
            It was moved by Trustee Watters: 

That the amended motion “That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 
(Greater Victoria) direct the Superintendent, pursuant to Policy and Regulation 1421, 
to establish a committee to explore changing the name of George Jay Elementary 
School” be amended to add the following words after 1421 “and any applicable 
legislation.” 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

 
Chair Paynter called for the vote on the main motion as amended. 

 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) direct the 
Superintendent, pursuant to Policy and Regulation 1421 and any applicable 
legislation, to establish a committee to explore changing the name of George Jay 
Elementary School. 

Motion Carried  

For: Trustees Hentze, Paynter and Whiteaker 
Against: Trustee Leonard 

 
 
I. NOTICE OF MOTION - None  
 
 
J. GENERAL ANNOUNCEMENTS – None  
 
 
K. ADJOURNMENT 

 
    It was moved by Trustee Watters: 

That the meeting be adjourned. 
Motion Carried Unanimously 

 
The meeting adjourned at 8:34 p.m. 

Page 35 of 153



 
 
 

 

 

 

 

School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 
556 Boleskine Road, Victoria, BC  V8Z 1E8 
Phone (250) 475-4106   Fax (250) 475-4112 Katrina Stride – Acting Secretary-Treasurer 

Office of the 
Secretary-Treasurer 

TO:  Board of  Education 

FROM:  Katrina Stride, Acting Secretary-Treasurer 

DATE:  September 23, 2019 

RE:  Regulation 3323 Purchasing Services 

______________________________________________________________________________________ 

Background: 
 
Since the last significant review of Regulation 3323 Purchasing Services in November 2016, the Purchasing 
Services Department has found that the per unit maximum for the purchase of equipment on standing 
purchase orders is no longer meeting the needs of schools and departments. As a result, the per unit 
maximum needs to be increased. 
 
Revision: 
 
There is only one revision to Regulation 3323 Purchasing Services under section E. Standing Purchase 
Orders. The revision is to increase the maximum value of equipment purchased on standing purchase orders 
from $500 to $1,000 per unit.   
 
Recommended motion: 
 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) accept revised 
Regulation 3323 Purchasing Services as presented. 

 
 

Page 36 of 153



 

 

 
Modification to this document is not permitted without prior written consent from the Greater Victoria School District.  

 

Regulation 3323       Page 1 of 7 

 
 

We nurture each student’s learning and 

well-being in a safe, responsive, and 

inclusive learning community. 

REGULATION 3323 

PURCHASING SERVICES 
 

Adopted: April 1970  
Revised: 1. March 1982, 2. July 1984, 3. January 2000, 4. November 2016, 5. March 2019  
Frequency of Review: Annual   

  
  

A.     General 

1. Purchasing Services shall be responsible for the procurement of goods and 

services for the School District.  While Purchasing Services is the only group 

who may legally enter into a contract with suppliers for goods or services, they 

may on a discretionary basis delegate this authority under specific 

circumstances. 

 

2. Purchasing Services may delegate authority to purchase certain goods or 

services to other departments and/or schools.  Nonetheless, purchasing must be 

conducted following established procurement procedures.  Failure to follow 

procedures may negate the School District’s responsibility to pay for the goods 

or services. 

 
3.      Purchasing shall be centralized to establish controls over public funds and to 

effect the procurement of goods and services at the best possible value.  Control 

shall be attained through standardization of 

procedures with regard to ordering, recordkeeping, receipt of goods, quality 

control, prompt payment of invoices, and supplier relations. Optimizing dollar 

investment shall be attained through systems contracting, competitive bids, 

aggregation of demand, participation in cooperative purchasing groups, 

utilizing Corporate Supply Agreements (CSAs), and discretionary delegation of 

purchasing authority. 

 

4.      To carry out their responsibility in a cost-effective and timely manner, 

Purchasing Services shall use several different procurement methods to 

minimize the total cost of goods and services.  Purchasing Services will use the 

Provincial Shared Services BC procurement contracts where applicable. All 

employees must follow the Board's purchasing procedures to ensure expedient 

handling of purchase requests. 

 

Page 37 of 153



 

 

 
Modification to this document is not permitted without prior written consent from the Greater Victoria School District.  

 

Regulation 3323       Page 2 of 7 

 
 

We nurture each student’s learning and 

well-being in a safe, responsive, and 

inclusive learning community. 

5.      Purchasing Services has full authority to question the quality and kind of 

material, goods and services requested, in order to serve the best interest of the 

School District. 

 
B.     Supplier Relations 

 
 

1. Requests for prices or for services, and all purchases, except in those cases 

where authority to purchase goods or services has been delegated, must be 

made through Purchasing Services. 

 
2. Only Purchasing Services or its designate shall make commitments to suppliers, 

disclose product preference or price, or conduct negotiations. 

 
3.      All communication with suppliers shall be conducted through Purchasing 

Services, except in those cases where Purchasing has delegated this 

authority because of the technical nature of the correspondence.  In these 

instances, Purchasing Services shall be copied on the communication. 

 

C.     Procurement Methods 
 
 

1. Purchasing Services may use a variety of procurement methods to ensure the best 

value to the District.  These may include: requests for quotation, requests for 

tender, requests for proposal, requests for qualifications, requests for information, 

and requests for expressions of interest. 

 

2. Procurement opportunities may be advertised through an electronic notice 

board, such as the provincial government’s BC BID website. 

 

3. Sealed solicitations received by Purchasing Services up to the deadline specified 

in the request shall be opened by an opening committee, comprised of two 

members of the Purchasing Services department. Where applicable, the opening 

will be conducted in public. 

 

4.  Sealed solicitations received by Purchasing Services after the specific deadline 

shall be rejected and returned unopened to the bidder/proponent. 

  

Page 38 of 153



 

 

 
Modification to this document is not permitted without prior written consent from the Greater Victoria School District.  

 

Regulation 3323       Page 3 of 7 

 
 

We nurture each student’s learning and 

well-being in a safe, responsive, and 

inclusive learning community. 

D.     Procurement Thresholds 
 
 

Purchasing Services shall solicit prices from suppliers for goods or services in the 

following manner: 

 
1.      An item or group of items estimated to cost under $10,000 - at the discretion 

of Purchasing Services - by obtaining two written quotations. 

 
2.      An item or group of items estimated to cost between $10,000 and 

$50,000 - by obtaining three written quotations. 
 
 

3.      An item or group of items estimated to cost more than $50,000 - by sealed 

tender or Request for Proposal. 

 

Exceptions to quotations and sealed bid requirements: 
 
 

•    Only one bidder is capable of providing the goods or services 

• The goods or services require compatibility with existing goods or services, 

or may void any warranties or guarantees 

• Pricing has been established by another public agency or cooperative 

purchasing group 

• Staff, student, or public safety is in question 

• There is an urgent need for the purchase to prevent damage to 

School District facilities 

• Essential services or essential physical plant services will be restored 

 
In these circumstances, with the approval of the Secretary-Treasurer, direct quotations 

may be obtained and contracts awarded. 

 
E.      Standing Purchase Orders 

 

When materials or services are purchased on a repetitive basis, but the need for the 

goods or services cannot be predicted, Purchasing Services may 

issue a Standing Purchase Order to a supplier after consulting with the 

departments and/or schools concerned. 

 

1.      Standing Purchase Order requests shall be submitted to Purchasing 

Services. 

Page 39 of 153



 

 

 
Modification to this document is not permitted without prior written consent from the Greater Victoria School District.  

 

Regulation 3323       Page 4 of 7 

 
 

We nurture each student’s learning and 

well-being in a safe, responsive, and 

inclusive learning community. 

2. After selecting a supplier, a Standing Purchase Order will be issued stating an 

estimated dollar value, the specific goods or services covered, and the 

expiration of the term. 

3. Standing Purchase Orders cannot be used to purchase equipment that exceeds 

the value of $5001,000 per unit cost. 

 

F.      Emergency or Rush Orders 
 
 

Occasionally, there is an urgent need for goods or services that cannot be handled by 

other order processes.  When a purchase order must be issued immediately, the end 

user department/school may call Purchasing Services and make arrangements to have 

the purchase requisition faxed or hand delivered in a manner that will expedite the 

purchasing process. 

 

G.     Corporate Purchasing Cards 
 
 

1. The Corporate Purchasing Card is used for the procurement and payment of 

goods and services within delegated purchasing authorization limits, where it is 

efficient, economical and operationally feasible to do so.  The Purchasing Card is 

strictly for School District 

No. 61 (Greater Victoria) business purposes. 
 
 

2. With the written approval from an employee’s Principal or Supervisor, an 

employee may make application to the District Purchasing Card Administrator 

for a Purchasing Card. 

 

3. Specific instructions for the use of purchasing cards are distributed to each new 

cardholder and cardholders must sign a cardholder agreement binding them to 

follow appropriate procedures. 

 
4. Principals/Supervisors review and approve cardholders’ monthly transactions 

and ensure that receipts for each transaction reconcile to the purchases made on 

the Purchasing Card. 

 
5. The District Purchasing Card Administrator reviews daily transactions for 

appropriate usage. 

 

6.      Purchasing Cards are surrendered to the District Purchasing Card Administrator 

upon retirement or termination of employment. 

 

Page 40 of 153



 

 

 
Modification to this document is not permitted without prior written consent from the Greater Victoria School District.  

 

Regulation 3323       Page 5 of 7 

 
 

We nurture each student’s learning and 

well-being in a safe, responsive, and 

inclusive learning community. 

H.     Purchase Requisitions 
 
 

Requests for goods or services not covered by a Standing Purchase Order or the 

discretionary delegated purchasing authority are to be submitted to Purchasing 

Services, either as an electronic purchase requisition through the Purchase Order 

Management (POM) module of the District’s financial system or as a hard copy 

purchase requisition.  Appropriate signing authorization and a valid 

school/department account number must accompany all purchase requests. 

 
I.      Service Levels 

 
 

Purchasing Services shall issue a Purchase Order to a supplier within four (4) working 

days from the date of receipt of a properly completed Purchase Requisition, where the 

cost of the goods or service do not require 

Purchasing to initiate a tender or other solicitation method and the goods or services 

are clearly defined. 

 
When the procurement of goods or services requires written competitive responses, 

Purchasing Services shall establish a time schedule with the requisitioner, consistent 

with the complexity of the request. 

 
J.      Surplus Disposal 

 

All assets are owned by the School District and are under the care, custody and control 

of a particular school or department.  Purchasing Services is responsible for the 

disposal of surplus assets.  Any proceeds realized by the sale of items through public 

auction will be transferred to the school or department. 

 

Where equipment or materials are considered surplus to the needs of the School 

District and are expected to have resale value, Purchasing Services may direct these 

items to be dealt with in any one of the following ways: 

 

• Following an assessment of condition by Facilities Services, the items may be 

kept and stored for possible use or transfer within the School District. Schools 

and departments may contact Facilities Services for a list of available items 

held in storage. 

• Used as a trade-in to reduce the purchase cost of new replacement items 

• Offered for sale through a public auction, such as the Province of BC Asset 

Investment Recovery Service 

 

 

Page 41 of 153



 

 

 
Modification to this document is not permitted without prior written consent from the Greater Victoria School District.  

 

Regulation 3323       Page 6 of 7 

 
 

We nurture each student’s learning and 

well-being in a safe, responsive, and 

inclusive learning community. 

Where equipment or materials are considered surplus to the needs of the School District 

and do not have resale value, Purchasing Services may direct these items to be dealt 

with in any one of the following ways: 

 
•   Donated to a suitable organization, such as the ReStore or the 

Compassionate Resource Warehouse 

•   Salvaged for parts 

•   Scrapped/recycled in the most environmentally sensitive manner 
 
 

Furniture, equipment, vehicles or materials will not be sold to School District 

employees unless they are the successful bidder in a public auction process. 

 
K.     Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act 

 
 

Purchasing Services will release tender/proposal information in accordance with the 

Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act. 

 
L.      Standardization 

 
 

Equipment and supplies will be standardized to ensure maximum value is attained 

where practical and beneficial. 

 
Consideration will be given to potential savings, ease of maintenance, continuity of 

supply, training costs, environmental impact, and overall life cycle value. 

 
M.    Conflict of Interest 

 

No employee of the School District shall engage in or have a financial interest, directly 

or indirectly, in any activity that conflicts or raises a reasonable question of conflict 

with their duties and responsibilities. 

 

It shall be a conflict of interest when an employee knowingly participates directly or 

indirectly in the procurement of goods or services when: 

 

1. An employee or member of the employee's immediate family, business associate, 

or close friend has a financial interest in the purchase; 

 

2. An employee uses the influence of position or demands or accepts favours or 

services from any individual, organization or corporation that would result in a 

financial benefit to the employee or member of the employee's immediate family, 

business associate, or close friend. 

Page 42 of 153



 

 

 
Modification to this document is not permitted without prior written consent from the Greater Victoria School District.  

 

Regulation 3323       Page 7 of 7 

 
 

We nurture each student’s learning and 

well-being in a safe, responsive, and 

inclusive learning community. 

 

Employees must make full disclosure to the Secretary-Treasurer of any situations that 

place them in a position where a conflict of interest may exist between their duties to 

the District and their personal interests. 

 
Employees shall not provide product endorsements without the approval of the 

Secretary-Treasurer. 

 
Reasonable hospitality is an acceptable courtesy of a business relationship where the 

frequency and nature of gifts or hospitality accepted is not deemed to have an 

influence on business decisions.  Gifts (other than items of small intrinsic value), 

gratuities and entertainment accepted from an individual, organization or corporation 

seeking to do business with the District shall be deemed a conflict of interest. 

 

Page 43 of 153



 
 
 

 

 

 

 

School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 
556 Boleskine Road, Victoria, BC  V8Z 1E8 
Phone (250) 475-4106   Fax (250) 475-4112 Katrina Stride – Acting Secretary-Treasurer 

Office of the 
Secretary-Treasurer 

TO:  Board of Education 

FROM:  Katrina Stride, Acting Secretary-Treasurer 

DATE:  September 23, 2019 

RE:  Audit Committee Report – September 16, 2019 Meeting 

______________________________________________________________________________________ 

Background: 
 
The Audit Committee held a meeting on September 16, 2019.  KPMG presented the Audit Findings Report 
for 2018-2019.  New business included discussions on the Audited Financial Statements, the Statement of 
Financial Information, School Accounting Records Review, Living Wage, Living Hours and Operational 
Reviews.  
 
Items of a financial nature were presented to the committee resulting in five recommendations to the Board.   
 
Recommendations: 
 
2018-2019 Audited Financial Statements 
 
Acting Secretary-Treasurer Stride reviewed the 2018-2019 Audited Financial Statements.  Trustees asked 
questions of clarification. 

Trustees recommended that the Board approve the motions related to the Audited Financial Statements 

through the Audit Committee Report. 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) approve the 
internally restricted surplus appropriation of $14,827,885 as shown on Schedule 2 of 
the 2018-2019 Audited Financial Statements, being held for school level funds 
$3,400,360 (Note A), unspent project budgets $4,843,799 (Note B), purchase order 
commitments $419,972 (Note C), and the previously approved budgeted surplus of 
$4,125,958 (Note D). 

 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) approve the 
June 30, 2019 unrestricted operating surplus of $2,037,796 (Note E) to be carried 
forward and applied towards the projected deficit in 2020-2021.  

 

Page 44 of 153



P a g e  | 2 

 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) approve the 
transfer of $639,270 to Local Capital in 2018-2019 for the Student Device Replacement 
Reserve ($339,270), the Technology Replacement Reserve ($200,000) and the 
Childcare Capital Reserve ($100,000). 

 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) approve the 
Audited Financial Statements of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) for the year 
ended June 30, 2019; and that the Board Chair, the Superintendent and the Secretary-
Treasurer be authorized to execute these statements, where applicable, on behalf of 
the Board. 

 

2018-2019 Statement of Financial Information 

Acting Secretary-Treasurer Stride explained that the Financial Information Act together with the related 

regulation and directive prescribe the information that each school district is required to include in the 

Statement of Financial Information (SOFI) and then provided an overview of the 2018-2019 SOFI report.   

Trustees recommended that the Board approve the motion related to the 2018-2019 Statement of Financial 

Information through the Audit Committee Report. 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) approve the 
schedules as required by the Financial Information Act for the period July 1, 2018 to 
June 30, 2019. 

 

Page 45 of 153



Background to 2018-2019 Financial Statements Page 1 of 8 

2018-2019 Audited Financial Statements  

Audit Committee Presentation  

September 16, 2019 
 

The financial statements, which comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2019, 
the statement of operations, changes in net financial assets (debt) and cash flows for the year 
then ended, and notes, have been audited by KPMG LLP who have reported that they are 
prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the financial provisions of Section 23.1 of 
the Budget Transparency and Accountability Act of the Province of British Columbia. These 
financial statements are in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards except 
with respect to the accounting treatment of government transfers.  

 
Statements 1 to 5 show the financial results for the School District on a consolidated basis for the 
operating, special purpose and capital funds (Statement 3 Remeasurement Gains and Losses 
does not apply to our District).   
 
Schedules 2 to 4 report the financial information for each of the funds and are explained below: 

 The operating budget revenue and expense details are shown on Schedules 2, 2A, 2B and 
2C.  

 The special purpose fund revenue and expense details are shown on Schedules 3 and 3A.  

 The capital fund revenue and expense details are shown on Schedule 4. 
 

OPERATING FUND 

 

Schedule 2 Schedule of Operating Operations 
 

The following table summarizes the 2018-2019 and 2017-2018 Schedule of Operating Operations 
per Schedule 2:  
 

 2018-2019 
Schedule 2 

2017-2018 
Schedule 2 

Revenues $   202,051,047 $ 192,477,974 

Expenses 200,846,476 192,522,411 

Net Revenue (Expense) 1,204,571 (44,437) 

Interfund transfers – Capital Assets Purchased (3,236,043) (2,865,770) 

Total Operating Surplus (Deficit), for the year (2,031,472) (2,910,207) 

Operating Surplus, beginning of year 16,859,357 19,769,564 

Operating Surplus, end of year $     14,827,885 $  16,859,357 

 

The Operating Fund had a net decrease of $2,031,472 in the current year, which when combined 
with the opening operating surplus balance of $16,859,357, results in the Operating Fund ending 
balance of $14,827,885.  

 
  

Page 46 of 153



Background to 2018-2019 Financial Statements Page 2 of 8 

Details of the Operating Fund ending balance are as follows: 
 

 2018-2019 2017-2018 

Secondary/ISP/CE School Funds $  2,187,697 $  2,701,604 

Middle School Funds 311,299 509,584 

Elementary School Funds 901,364 1,035,028 

Total School Level Funds (Note A) 3,400,360 4,246,216 

 
ANED Curriculum Sales and Grad Funds 469,739 262,086 

Professional Development Funds 130,214 178,433 

School Project Carry Forward Funds 159,045 0 

Department Carry Forward Funds 2,356,628 3,096,739 

Unspent Special Grants and Fees 1,728,172 1,770,412 

Total Unspent Project Budgets (Note B) 4,843,798 5,307,670 

   

School Computers and Software 50,415 333,536 

School Equipment 124,751 233,454 

Curriculum Materials 60,735 5,834 

All Other Purchase Orders 184,072 445,951 

Total Purchase Order Commitments (Note C) 419,973 1,018,775 

   

Budgeted Planned Surplus (Note D) 4,125,958 3,900,000 

Totally Internally Restricted Surplus 12,790,089 14,472,661 

Unrestricted Operating Surplus (Note E) 2,037,796 2,386,696 

Total Operating Surplus $14,827,885 $16,859,357 
 

 

Note A: Unspent funding at the school level at year end is carried forward into the next year's 
operating budget. This enables schools to accumulate balances for new textbooks for 
curriculum changes, equipment replacement/improvements (e.g. teaching kitchens and 
shop equipment), plan purchases and deliveries to tie in with the school year, and also 
avoid "year-end buying frenzies" in the District. Effective in the 2018-2019 school year, 
school carry forwards are limited as follows: 

 

 Elementary and Middle Schools - $40,000 ($60,000 in 2018-2019 transitional year) 

 Secondary Schools - $80,000 ($120,000 in 2018-2019 transitional year) 
 
Where a school anticipates a school project in excess of $10,000, a written request can 
be made for approval to maintain a higher reserve balance. 

 

Note B: The category of unspent project budgets represents the funding required to complete 
projects.  Department carry forward funding is earmarked for specific initiatives which 
require the accumulation of multi-year budgeted amounts. Examples of grant funding/fee 
income received include Education Plan and ACE-IT. 

  
Note C: Total of all outstanding purchase orders that have not had goods and services received 

as at June 30 fiscal year end. This ensures that the budgeted funds for the commitment 
are carried forward and are available when the goods and services are received. The 
accounting principles do not permit outstanding commitments of any kind at the end of 
the school year to be included in the expenditure total. 

 
 
 
 

Page 47 of 153



Background to 2018-2019 Financial Statements Page 3 of 8 

Note D: $4.1 million has been appropriated for the 2019-2020 and 2020-2021 Operating Budgets 
as follows: 

 $2.3 million June 30, 2018 unrestricted operating surplus approved in September 
2018 for 2019-2020 

 $1.1 million June 30, 2019 unrestricted operating surplus approved in April 2019 
for 2019-2020 

 $682,000 June 30, 2019 unrestricted operating surplus approved in April 2019 for 
2020-2021 

 

Note E: The unrestricted operating surplus of $2,037,796 can be utilized for future budget plans. 
It is primarily the result of increased revenue from enrolment growth, increased tuition 
fees in the international student program, increased investment and rental income, 
delays in filling positions, department budget savings, and lower actual employee 
benefit costs than budgeted.  
 

Schedule 2A Operating Revenue by Source 
 

The following table summarizes Revenue by source in the Operating Fund: 

 2018-2019 
Operating 
Revenues 

2017-2018 
Operating 
Revenues 

Provincial Grants $180,271,746 $172,110,768 

Tuition 16,048,577 15,107,552 

DISC/LEA Recovery 1,080,815 1,064,664 

Other Revenues 1,364,770 1,247,820 

Rentals and Leases 2,093,927 1,944,463 

Investment Income 1,191,212 1,002,707 

Total Operating Revenue $202,051,047 $192,477,974 

 

The major changes in Operating Revenues in the 2018-2019 Financial Statements as 
compared to the 2017-2018 Financial Statements are as follows: 
 
1) Provincial Grants have increased by $8.2 million due to the following: 

 2018-2019 school age enrolment increase 384.341 FTE $2.8 million 

 Per pupil funding increase of $122/FTE   $2.4 million 

 Targeted funding net increase ELL, ANED, SN, SS, CE $1.4 million 

 Teacher salary and funding formula net increase         $0.9 million 

 Employer Health Tax grant increase $0.5 million 

 Economic Stability Dividend, SRG3 Assessments net increase $0.2 million 
 

2) Tuition fees have increased $941K reflecting a full year at the increased tuition rate of 
$14,000 in the international student program as compared to 20% of the year in 2017-2018 
at a comparable level of enrolment. 

 
3) Other revenues have increased $117K as a result of an increase in International Student 

Program recoveries. 
 

4) Rentals and leases revenue has increased $149K primarily as a result of  increased rental 
rates as of July 1, 2018 and increased community rental of facilities, fields, theatres and 
parking lots, partially due to the local government election. 

 
5) Investment income has increased $189K due to an increase in interest rates. 

Page 48 of 153



Background to 2018-2019 Financial Statements Page 4 of 8 

Schedule 2B Operating Expense by Object 

 

 2018-2019 
Operating 
Expenses 

2017-2018 
Operating 
Expenses 

Salaries   

 Teachers $86,474,077 $82,713,167 

 Principals and Vice Principals 12,781,738 11,729,196 

 Educational Assistants 17,697,841 17,325,907 

 Support Staff 16,930,718 16,723,091 

 Other Professionals 4,122,729 4,201,752 

 Substitutes 8,760,448 8,253,999 

 Total Salaries 146,767,481 140,947,112 

   
Employee Benefits 32,563,782 31,402,246 

   

Total Salaries and Employee Benefits 179,331,263 172,349,426 

   
Services and Supplies   

 Services 8,011,156 6,985,412 

 Student Transportation 995,979 974,700 

 Professional Development and Travel 1,176,030 1,232,663 

 Rentals and Leases 115,235 49,832 

 Dues and Fees 108,797 95,497 

 Insurance 355,418 363,016 

 Supplies 6,164,308 6,360,109 

 Utilities 4,588,290 4,111,824 

 Total Services and Supplies 21,515,213 20,173,053 

   

Total Operating Expense $200,846,476 $192,522,411 

 

The major changes in Operating Expenses in the 2018-2019 Financial Statements as compared 
to the 2017-2018 Financial Statements are as follows: 
 

1) Teachers, Educational Assistants and Support Staff Salaries are higher in 2018-2019 as 
compared to 2017-2018 due to a 0.5% increase effective July 1, 2018 and a further 
increase of 1.75% effective May 1, 2019.  Additionally, 25 more teachers and 15 more 
support staff have been hired in 2018-2019. 

 
2) Principals and Vice Principals salaries increased 3.95% effective August 1, 2018. 

 
3) Other Professionals salaries increased 1.45% effective July 1, 2018.  The decrease in 

Other Professionals salaries is the result of allocating costs to capital projects for time 
spent by Facilities staff managing the projects. 

 
4) Increased employee benefits expense corresponds with the increased salaries cost. 

 
5) Services expenses are higher in the current year mainly as a result of one-time election 

costs, SRG3 (Seismic Risk) assessments (Ministry Funded Project) and DDC (Direct 
Digital Control) upgrades (Facility Environmental Upgrades from 16-17 Surplus Funds). 

Page 49 of 153



Background to 2018-2019 Financial Statements Page 5 of 8 

6) Rentals and Leases reflect expenses for several new operating leases for fleet vehicles 
used by Facilities Services. 

 
7) Decreased Supplies in the current year can be attributed to the one-time purchase of 

learning resources for the new curriculum in the prior year. 
 

8) Utilities have increased as compared to the prior year due to increased natural gas costs 
and Next Generation Network charges (NGN charge is based on enrolment). 

 

Schedule 2C Operating Expense by Function, Program and Object 
 

The following table summarizes Operating Expenses by source in the Operating Fund: 

 
2018-2019 
Operating 

Expenses ($) 

2018-2019 
Operating 
Expenses 

(%) 

2018-2019 
Provincial 

Average 
(%) 

Instruction $168,420,887 85.5% 82.8% 

District Administration 4,874,408 2.5% 3.8% 

Operations and Maintenance 22,560,076 11.5% 11.5% 

Transportation and Housing 1,015,025 0.5% 1.9% 

Total Operating Expenses $196,870,396 100% 100% 

 

The Operating Fund final expenditures indicate District spending of 85.5% on Instruction which is 
higher than the Provincial average of 82.8%. District administration spending is 2.5% which is 
below the Provincial average of 3.8%. Operations and Maintenance spending is 11.5% and is the 
same as the Provincial average. Transportation and Housing spending is 0.5% as compared to 
the Provincial average of 1.9%. 

 

 

Page 50 of 153



Background to 2018-2019 Financial Statements Page 6 of 8 

SPECIAL PURPOSE FUND 

 

Schedule 3 Schedule of Special Purpose Operations 

Schedule 3A Changes in Special Purpose Funds and Expense by Object 
 

Special Purpose Funds are funds received for specific purposes and must be used for those 
purposes. The special purpose fund revenues are as follows: 

 

 2018-2019 
Special 

Purpose 
Revenues 

2017-2018 
Special 

Purpose 
Revenues 

Annual Facility Grant $     816,485 $     880,701 

Learning Improvement Fund 672,847 668,206 

Scholarships and Bursaries 29,578 26,716 

Special Education Technology 112,830 111,000 

School Generated Funds 6,718,913 6,558,567 

Strong Start 198,580 198,833 

Ready, Set, Learn 64,530 79,756 

Official Languages in Education Protocol (OLEP) 407,145 410,966 

CommunityLINK 4,046,853 3,755,374 

Coding and Curriculum Implementation 48,004 73,985 

Priority Measures - 353,990 

Classroom Enhancement Fund – Staffing  14,452,064 14,687,216 

Classroom Enhancement Fund – Overhead 791,979 1,360,638 

Classroom Enhancement Fund - Remedies 2,265,633 - 

Ledger School 241,371 242,312 

Provincial Inclusion Outreach 498,554 494,327 

Charitable Trust 700 322,491 

Estate Trust 5,151 13,858 

Special Purpose Revenues $31,371,217 $30,238,936 
 

The following outlines the major changes in the Special Purpose Funds: 
 

1) As of 2017-2018, the Learning Improvement Fund consists only of a grant targeted towards 
school support staff as the Ministry of Education rolled the teacher portion of the Learning 
Improvement Fund (Education Fund) into the Classroom Enhancement Fund. 
 

2) CommunityLINK revenue reflects the allocation of the funding carried forward from the prior 
year to match the increased level of expenditure in the current year.  The Ministry grant 
funding  is unchanged at $3.9 million. 
 

3) The Coding and Curriculum Implementation funding was received in 2016-2017 to support 
curriculum implementation, including a new mandatory coding requirement. The total grant 
received was $135,268; the remaining balance of $48,004 was spent in 2018-2019. 

 

4) The Priority Measures grant funding was provided to districts in January 2017 to hire 
additional teachers as the first step in responding to the decision from the Supreme Court of 
Canada. The allocation of the remaining balance of $353,990 was spent in 2017-2018. 

 

 

Page 51 of 153



Background to 2018-2019 Financial Statements Page 7 of 8 

5) Classroom Enhancement Fund is the grant allocation provided by the Ministry of Education 
to fund additional teachers hired to meet the restored collective agreement class size and 
composition language, funding to address remedies, and funding for overhead costs. In 2017-
2018, much of the overhead funding was one-time funding to manage the transitional nature 
of the year and the costs required to have new classrooms functioning. Funding for remedies 
is new and was based upon actual remedies incurred in October 2018. 
 

6) The method of recognizing revenue related to donations received by the School District was 
changed in 2018-2019. The revenue is now allocated to the school and department accounts 
for which the donation is provided rather than reporting the revenue in the Charitable Trust 
special purpose fund.  Total donations received in 2018-2019 is $330,654. 

 

CAPITAL FUND 
 
Schedule 4 Schedule of Capital Operations 
Schedule 4A Tangible Capital Assets 
Schedule 4B Tangible Capital Assets - Work in Progress 
Schedule 4C Deferred Capital Revenue 

 

Tangible capital assets are assets that have an expected life greater than one year and are not 
consumed in the normal course of operations. These assets are amortized over their useful life, 
meaning that the cost of the asset is expensed over a period of time.  

 

Deferred capital revenue is funding received from a third party for the acquisition, development, 
construction or betterment of a tangible capital asset. These funds are amortized over the life of 
the asset to match the amortization expense, meaning that revenue is recognized over a period 
of time. There are three categories of deferred capital revenue (Schedule 4C):  

 

 Bylaw Capital includes contributions received from the Ministry of Education for major 
capital programs. The Additional Education Space, seismic upgrade work at Campus View 
and Braefoot, and Annual Facility Grant (AFG) projects are funded from Bylaw Capital.  

 

 Other Provincial includes Ministry of Education Restricted Capital, which is made up of 
proceeds from the lease of assets which were originally purchased from Bylaw Capital, 
interest earned on the deferred capital revenue balance, 75% of the proceeds of 
disposition of the sale of surplus school properties, and unspent (surplus) funds from 
Ministry-funded capital projects. Ministry approval is required to spend these funds. The 
renovation of the Burnside Education Centre is being funded from Other Provincial. Other 
Provincial also includes funding from the Industry Training Authority (ITA) for a three-year 
Youth Trades Capital Equipment Program which enables schools to purchase trades 
training equipment. 
 

 Other Capital includes third party contributions for the future replacement of the 
Neighbourhood Learning Centre and artificial turf field at Oak Bay High School, as well as 
contributions for the Child Care Capital Funding Program. 
 

Local Capital includes proceeds from the lease of assets which were originally purchased from 
Board funds, interest earned on the local capital balance, and 25% of the proceeds of disposition 
of the sale of surplus school properties. The Technology Replacement Reserve, Quadra learning 
studio and a portion of the Northridge classroom space are funded from Local Capital. 

 

Page 52 of 153



Background to 2018-2019 Financial Statements Page 8 of 8 

Capital assets purchased out of Operating and Special Purpose funds are shown on Schedule 1 
as an interfund transfer to the Capital Fund.   

 

The change in capital assets is detailed in Schedule 4A. Completed capital asset additions totalled 
$17.6 million of which equipment and vehicle additions totalled $1.5 million, computer hardware 
and software additions totalled $1.3 million and building improvements/seismic upgrades totalled 
$14.8 million, primarily related to the Additional Education Space and the renovation of the 
Burnside Education Centre. The buildings work in progress totals $3.0 million (Schedule 4B) 
related to the seismic upgrade work at Campus View and Braefoot, the renovation work at SJ 
Willis and the work on the childcare portables.  

 
Capital asset dispositions include the deemed disposition of furniture and equipment, computer 
software and computer hardware that is fully amortized. 
 
 
The following motions are recommended: 
 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) approve the 
internally restricted surplus appropriation of $14,827,885 as shown on Schedule 2 of 
the 2018-2019 Audited Financial Statements, being held for school level funds 
$3,400,360 (Note A), unspent project budgets $4,843,799 (Note B), purchase order 
commitments $419,972 (Note C), and the previously approved budgeted surplus of 
$4,125,958 (Note D). 

 
That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) approve the 
June 30, 2019 unrestricted operating surplus of $2,037,796 (Note E) to be carried 
forward and applied towards the projected deficit in 2020-2021.  

 
That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) approve the 
transfer of $639,270 to Local Capital in 2018-2019 for the Student Device Replacement 
Reserve ($339,270), the Technology Replacement Reserve ($200,000) and the 
Childcare Capital Reserve ($100,000). 

 
That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) approve the 
Audited Financial Statements of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) for the year 
ended June 30, 2019; and that the Board Chair, the Superintendent and the Secretary-
Treasurer be authorized to execute these statements, where applicable, on behalf of 
the Board. 

 
 

 

Page 53 of 153



 
 
 

School District 
No. 61 (Greater 
Victoria) 
 
 

Audit Findings Report for the year ended 
June 30, 2019 
 
 
 
 

 

 

For meet ing on September 16,  2019  

 

kpmg.ca/audi t  

Page 54 of 153

https://home.kpmg.com/ca/en/home/services/audit.html


 

Table of contents 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 1 

AUDIT RISKS AND RESULTS 4 

FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION AND DISCLOSURE 8 

ADJUSTMENTS AND DIFFERENCES 9 

APPENDICES 11 
 
 

 

The contacts at KPMG in connection  
with this report are:  

Lenora Lee 

Lead Audit Engagement Partner 

Tel: (250) 480-3588 

lenoramlee@kpmg.ca 

 

Matt Meekes 

Audit Manager  
Tel: (250) 480-3570 

mmeekes@kpmg.ca 

 

Page 55 of 153



 

 
KPMG Audit Findings Report |   1 

 

Executive summary 
    Purpose of this report* 

The purpose of this Audit Findings Report is to assist you, as a member of the Audit Committee of the Board of Education (“Audit 

Committee”), in your review of the results of our audit of the financial statements of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) (the “District”) 

as at and for the year ended June 30th, 2019. 

This Audit Findings Report builds on the Audit Plan we presented to the Audit Committee. 

   Changes from the Audit Plan 

There have been no significant changes regarding our audit from the Audit Planning Report previously presented to you. 

   Finalizing the Audit 

As of the date of this report, we have completed the audit of the financial statements, with the exception of certain remaining procedures, 

which include amongst others: 

― Completing our discussions with the Audit Committee 

― Obtaining evidence of the Board’s approval of the financial statements 

― Obtaining the signed management representation letter 

― Reporting to the Office of the Auditor General for the purposes of reliance on our audit opinion in the audit of the summary financial 

statements of the Province 

We will update the Audit Committee, and not solely the Chair (as required by professional standards), on significant matters, if any, arising 

from the completion of the audit, including the completion of the above procedures. Our auditors’ report will be dated upon the completion 

of any remaining procedures. 

 
 
 
*This Audit Findings Report should not be used for any other purpose or by anyone other than the Audit Committee. KPMG shall have no responsibility or 
liability for loss or damages or claims, if any, to or by any third party as this Audit Findings Report has not been prepared for, and is not intended for, and 
should not be used by, any third party or for any other purpose.  

Page 56 of 153



 

KPMG Audit Findings Report |   2 

 

Executive summary 
   Audit risks and results 

We discussed with you at the start of the audit a number of significant financial reporting risks. These risks have been addressed in our 

audit. 

We also discussed with you some other areas of audit focus. We have no significant matters to report to the Audit Committee in respect of 

them.  

See pages 4-7. 

   Critical accounting estimates 

Overall, we are satisfied with the reasonability of critical accounting estimates. 

The critical areas of estimates relate to: impairment of assets, rates for amortization and employee future benefits. 

 

   Significant accounting policies and practices  

There have been no initial selections of, or changes to, significant accounting policies and practices to bring to your attention. 

  

Page 57 of 153



 

KPMG Audit Findings Report |   3 

 

Executive summary 
   Adjustments and differences 

We did not identify any adjustments that were communicated to management and subsequently corrected in the financial statements. 

 

   Control and other observations 

We did not identify any control deficiencies that we determined to be significant deficiencies in Internal Control over Financial Reporting  

 

   Independence 

As required by professional standards, we have considered all relationships between KPMG and the District that may have a bearing on 

independence. We confirm that we are independent with respect to the District within the meaning of the relevant rules and related 

interpretations prescribed by the relevant professional bodies in Canada and any applicable legislation or regulation from July 1, 2018 up 

to the date of this report.  

 

  

Page 58 of 153



 

 
KPMG Audit Findings Report |   4 

 

Audit risks and results 
We highlight our significant findings in respect of significant financial reporting risks as identified in our discussion with you in 

the Audit Plan, as well as any additional significant risks identified. 

 
  Significant financial reporting risks   Our response and significant findings 

Fraud risk from management override of 

controls 
• As the risk is not rebuttable, our audit methodology incorporates the required 

procedures in professional standards to address this risk. These procedures 
include testing of journal entries and other adjustments, performing a retrospective 
review of estimates and evaluating the business rationale of significant unusual 
transactions. 

• We noted no issues or concerns arising from these procedures. 

 

 

 

  

Page 59 of 153



 

KPMG Audit Findings Report |   5 

 

Audit risks and results 
Significant findings from the audit regarding other areas of focus are as follows: 
 
  Other area of focus Our response and significant findings 

Auditors’ Opinion – 

Compliance Framework 
• The financial statements are prepared under Canadian Public Sector Accounting (“PSA”) standards, 

supplemented by the requirements of Regulations 257/2010 and 198/2011 issued by the Province of 
British Columbia Treasury Board. 

• These regulations direct the District to apply PSA, except in regard to accounting for restricted 
contributions. Under the regulations, capital contributions are to be deferred and amortized on the 
same basis as the amortization of the related tangible capital assets, not in accordance with the 
underlying stipulations on the funding, as required under PSA. 

• As a result, the District’s revenue recognized in the statement of operations and certain related 
deferred capital revenue would have been recorded differently under Canadian Public Sector 
Accounting Standards. 

• The Office of the Auditor General (“OAG”) has requested additional reporting, under the Group Auditor 
requirements, in order to perform the consolidation of the Provincial Accounts under the PSA 
standards. 

• Differences greater than OAG’s reporting threshold were reported with respect to restricted funding 
received from non-government sources.   

Employee future benefits 

and salaries 
• The Ministry of Education, on behalf of all School Districts in BC, engages an external actuary to 

determine the obligations and related costs for both vested and non-vested benefits, which include sick 
leave, retirement incentive, severance and vacation offered as part of the District’s collective 
agreements. 

• In the 2019 fiscal year, a full actuarial valuation of the obligation was performed at March 31, 2019 
based on data submitted to the actuary by the District.  The full valuation occurs every three years.    

• In the current year, we agreed the amounts disclosed in the notes to the financial statements to the 
actuarial extrapolation based on the March 31, 2019 valuation.  

• We agreed a sample of data used by Mercer in performing the valuation to underlying data in the 
District’s payroll system. 

• We assessed the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the actuary in performing the actuarial 
valuation. 

• We assessed the use of significant assumptions used for the valuing the obligation, including estimated 
inflation rate, discount rate, earnings growth and service life of employees.  

• No issues were noted. 

  

Page 60 of 153



 

KPMG Audit Findings Report |   6 

 

Audit risks and results 
Significant findings from the audit regarding other areas of focus are as follows: 
 
  Other area of focus Our response and significant findings 

Tangible capital assets • During the year the District incurred $16.1 million in tangible capital additions. 

• $13.3 million relates to buildings projects, with $4.4 million of the building additions related to bylaw 

capital expenditures, $3.0 million related to MOE restricted capital, $3.3 million from local capital and 

$2.3 million from other sources. Significant expenditures for projects during the year include:  

o $5 million for SJ Burnside Education Centre upgrades with capital funding of $2.7 million from 

MOE restricted capital and $2.3 million from local capital 

o $1 million of bylaw capital for seismic upgrades for Campus View Elementary ($0.5 million) 

and Braefoot Elementary ($0.5 million) schools  

o $0.6 million of bylaw capital for construction costs expended during the year to increase 

capacity at the District’s schools 

o $2.8 million in bylaw capital related to AFG capital expenditures  

• We selected a sample of additions for testing and inspected the supporting invoices to determine if the 

amount recognized agreed, was capital in nature, and eligible per the funding sources. 

• A reasonability assessment of amortization expense recorded during the year based on estimated 
useful life of capital assets was performed. 

• We reviewed agreements for contractual commitments and related disclosure requirements. 

• No issues or adjustments were noted.  

Procurement • We performed analytical procedures on non-payroll expenditures as compared to the amended budget.  

• We reviewed the policy for reimbursement of personal expenses on official District business and 

selected a sample of employee reimbursements for testing. 

• For the samples selected, we inspected the reimbursement form and supporting receipts to determine 

if the expenses claimed were within the policy and the reimbursements were appropriately authorized. 

• No issues were noted. 

Page 61 of 153



 

 
KPMG Audit Findings Report |   7 

 

Audit risks and results 
Significant findings from the audit regarding other areas of focus are as follows: 
 
  Other area of focus Our response and significant findings 

Classroom 

Enhancement Funds 
• During the year, the District received Classroom Enhancement Funds (CEF) of $18.3 million. Of this 

amount, $14.9 million related to staffing costs and $0.8 million related to overhead costs, $2.6 million 

related to remedies. These funds are restricted for the purposes of implementing restored class size 

and composition limits. 

• We agreed the amount of funds received to the confirmation letter from the Ministry. 

• We tested the receipt and use of Classroom Enhancement Funds to determine if revenue collected 

was accurate and has been used for its intended purpose based on funding restrictions.  

• During the year, the District spent $17.5 million of the grant and $0.8 million is unspent at June 30, 

2019. We noted the amounts have been correctly classified as Special Purpose Funds and deferred 

according to the Ministry’s guidelines. 

• KPMG obtained an understanding of the process which the District used to determine extra costs 

relating to CEF staffing and overhead. 

• KPMG tested the assumptions related to each input used for the District’s submission of forecasted 

costs to the Ministry for reasonability such as average teacher salary and benefit costs.  

• No errors or issues were noted arising from the audit procedures performed. 

  

 

Page 62 of 153



 

 
KPMG Audit Findings Report |   8 

 

Financial statement presentation and disclosure  
The presentation and disclosure of the financial statements are, in all material respects, in accordance with the Entity’s 

relevant financial reporting framework. Misstatements, including omissions, if any, related to disclosure or presentation 

items are in the management representation letter. 

We also highlight the following: 

Form, arrangement, and 
content of the financial 
statements 

Adequate  

Application of accounting 
pronouncements issued 
but not yet effective 

Asset Retirement Obligations 

– A new standard has been approved that is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after 
April 1, 2021. 

– The new standard addresses the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of 
legal obligations associated with retirement of tangible capital assets in productive use. 
Retirement costs would be recognized as an integral cost of owning and operating tangible 
capital assets. PSAB currently contains no specific guidance in this area. 

– The ARO standard would require the public sector entity to record a liability related to future 
costs of any legal obligations to be incurred upon retirement of any controlled tangible 
capital assets (“TCA”). The amount of the initial liability would be added to the historical cost 
of the asset and amortized over its useful life. 

– As a result of the new standard, the public sector entity would have to:  

 consider how the additional liability will impact net debt, as a new liability will be 
recognized with no corresponding increase in a financial asset; 

 carefully review legal agreements, senior government directives and legislation in 
relation to all controlled TCA to determine if any legal obligations exist with respect to 
asset retirements; 

 begin considering the potential effects on the organization as soon as possible to 
coordinate with resources outside the finance department to identify AROs and obtain 
information to estimate the value of potential AROs to avoid unexpected issues. 

 
 

Page 63 of 153



 

 
KPMG Audit Findings Report |   9 

 

 

 

Adjustments and differences 

 

Adjustments and differences identified during the audit have been categorized as “Corrected adjustments” or “Uncorrected 

differences”. These include disclosure adjustments and differences. 

Professional standards require that we request of management and the audit committee that all identified adjustments or differences be 

corrected. We have already made this request of management. 

 
 Corrected adjustments 

 We did not identify any adjustments that were communicated to management and subsequently corrected in the financial statements. 

 Uncorrected differences 

 We did not identify differences that remain uncorrected. 

 
 

Page 64 of 153



 

 
KPMG Audit Findings Report |   10 

 

Selected financial information 
 

As part of the audit, there are certain key ratios and trends that we review. We share these ratios with the Board and welcome any questions related to our interpretation of 
trends. 
 
Note: the following financial information is taken from the annual audited financial statements prepared in accordance with Public Sector Accounting Standards and Treasury 
Board Regulations. The provincial averages are taken from data reported to the BC Government and is available to the public on the Ministry of Education financial reporting 
website. At the time of issuance of this report, the provincial data for fiscal 2019 was not yet available, as such all charts comparing the district and the provincial average are 
based on fiscal 2018 data. They have been included for comparative purposes.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 65 of 153



2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
0M

20M

40M

60M

80M

100M

120M

140M

160M

180M

200M

220M

240M

166,799,028 173,599,053
181,264,735

196,525,790
206,911,316

12,111,599
13,818,673

14,787,726

15,107,552

16,036,198

5,929,053

6,920,788

7,147,223

8,147,107
8,491,233

8,069,686

9,158,451

9,141,593

Revenue by Category
(Selected School District)

3.77%
2.94% 0.86%

85.26%

6.61%

Proportional Revenue by Source (2019)
(Selected School District)

4.00% 0.27%

86.24%

5.66%
3.58%

Proportional Revenue by Source  -
Vancouver Island Average (2018)

Revenue Analysis

Investment Income
Rentals and Leases
Amortization of DCR
Other Revenue
Tuition
Provincial Grants

61 Greater Victoria
62 Sooke
63 Saanich
68 Nanaimo-Ladysmith
71 Comox Valley
79 Cowichan Valley

Vancouver Island Comparatives:

Total current year revenues have grown by 5.15% as compared to prior 

year with provincial grant revenue growth of 5.28% and tuition revenue 

growth of 6.25%. 

- 

The trend in operating grant revenue growth since 2015 is reflective of the 

increases in enrollment numbers experienced by the School District and 

variability in operating fund grants. Tuition revenues have increased in the 

current year with a trend of more international students seeking the 

opportunities to study overseas and choosing Victoria as their destination. 

- 

The proportionate composition of the School District’s revenue is 

consistent with that of the selected comparatives.

Data Source: Ministry of Education District Reports and 2018/19 SD#61 financial statements

Page 66 of 153



2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

0M

20M

40M

60M

80M

100M

120M

140M

160M

180M

200M

220M

240M

15
7,
00
2,
90
8

31
,1
25
,3
07

4,
56
0,
92
4

84
7,
24
0

16
6,
28
8,
67
5

33
,1
61
,0
52

4,
27
4,
26
7

93
1,
14
6

17
2,
68
3,
40
4

35
,0
33
,0
55

1,
01
8,
34
8

4,
57
5,
54
1

19
2,
81
5,
71
5

35
,0
00
,4
77

4,
91
6,
32
6

88
3,
13
0

20
1,
19
2,
05
2

37
,6
04
,3
08

5,
45
2,
27
2

84
2,
73
0

Expense by Function
(Selected school district)

0.34%

15.34%

82.09%

2.22%

Proportional Expense by Function (2019)
(Selected school district)

1.94%

14.81%

80.24%

3.01%

Proportional Expense by Function -
Vancouver Island Average (2018)

Expenses by Function Analysis

Transportation and Housing
District Administration
Operations and Maintenance
Instruction

61 Greater Victoria
62 Sooke
63 Saanich
68 Nanaimo-Ladysmith
71 Comox Valley
79 Cowichan Valley

b
b
b
b
b
b

Vancouver Island Comparatives:

Data Source: Ministry of Education District Reports and 2018/19 SD#61 financial statements

Instruction expenses represent the largest portion of expenses by function, 

representing 82.09% of total expenses in the current year as compared to 

82.54% in 2018. Instruction expenses are closely related to enrollment numbers 

in the School District and reflect the growth the School District has experienced 

since 2015, which explains the 4.34% instruction expenditure increase from 

prior year. 

- 

Operations & Maintenance represent the second largest operating expense to 

the School District with at approximately 15.34% of total expenses which has 

increased at a steady rate over the past 5 years. 

- 

District Administration represents 2.22% of the School Districts operating 

expenditures. These expenses have increased at a steady rate over the past 5 

years. 

- 

The proportionate composition of the School District’s expenses by function is 

consistent with that of the selected comparatives.

Page 67 of 153



2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
0M

20M

40M

60M

80M

100M

120M

140M

160M

180M

200M

220M

240M

Expense by Object
(Selected school district)

Amortization
Services and supplies
Salaries and benefits

4.73% 1.70%

13.79%

14.89%

40.21%

4.46%

5.36%

7.85%

7.02%

Proportional Expense by Object (2019)
(Selected school district)

2.97%2.39%

14.27%

15.76%

39.48%

5.50%

5.03%

6.43%

8.17%

Proportional Expense by Object -
Vancouver Island Average (2018)

Expenses by Object Analysis

Teacher Salaries
Employee Benefits
Services and supplies
Support Staff Salaries
Educational Assistant Salaries
Principal & VP Salaries
Amortization
Substitute Salaries
Other Professional Salaries

61 Greater Victoria
62 Sooke
63 Saanich
68 Nanaimo-Ladysmith
71 Comox Valley
79 Cowichan Valley

b
b
b
b
b
b

Vancouver Island Comparatives:

Data Source: Ministry of Education District Reports and 2018/19 SD#61 financial statements

Total expenses have grown steadily since 2015 as a result of increases in enrollment, 

salary costs and inflation. Salaries & benefits represent 81.75% of total expenses in 

2019. Salaries & benefits in the current year have increased by 4.79% as compared to 

prior year as a result of scheduled collective agreement adjustments, an increase in 

enrollment and the classroom enhancement funding received and spent in the year. 

- 

Other expenses such as services & supplies and amortization represent approximately 

18.25% of the School District’s expenses and have remained relatively consistent 

compared to the increase in enrollment. 

- 

The proportionate composition of the School District’s expenses by object is consistent 

with that of the selected comparatives.

Page 68 of 153



2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

0M

50M

100M

150M

200M

Annual Surplus

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
0M

5M

10M

15M

Accumulated Surplus

Internally restricted operating surplus
Unrestricted operating surplus

Operating expenses
Operating revenue

Annual Surplus and Accumulated Surplus Analysis
School District No.61 (Greater Victoria)

Surplus/Deficit -
operating fund

Accumulated surplus -
capital fund

Accumulated surplus -
operating fund

Unrestricted operating
surplus
2,037,79614,827,88549,475,7301,204,571

Data Source: Ministry of Education District Reports and 2018/19 SD#61 financial statements

In fiscal 2019, the School District experienced a 3.59% decrease in the accumulated surplus due to spending 

on capital projects. The decrease was expected as the District encouraged the use of carry forward capital 

and school carryforward surpluses. 

- 

Both operating revenues and expenses have grown steadily since 2015, in line with the increase in 

enrolment. In the current year the annual operating surplus is $1,204,571. The majority of the accumulated 

surplus remains restricted for future years’ operating budget and carry-forward school and project budgets.

Page 69 of 153



2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
0M

1M

2M

3M

4M

5M

6M

7M

School Generated Funds
(selected school district)

68 - Nanaimo-
Ladysmith 62 - Sooke

71 - Comox
Valley

79 - Cowichan
Valley

61 - Greater
Victoria 63 - Saanich

0

100

200

300

400

500

School Generated Funds per Student FTE (2018)

School Generated Funds

School District No.61 (Greater Victoria)
2019 School Generated Funds 2019 School Generated Funds Increase

2.44%6,718,913

Data Source: Ministry of Education District Reports and 2018/19 SD#61 financial statements

The District has experienced steady growth in school generated 

funds since 2015. When compared against neighboring districts, 

Greater Victoria represents about the average in the range of 

Vancouver Island school districts, as reported in schedule 3A. 

The comparable data presented relates to fiscal 2018.

Page 70 of 153



87

60

81

91

82

27

57

6

59

73

28

8

49

5

74

85

58
78

54

19

48

83

10

51

70

22

92

72

72

85

50 52

84

47

53

46

79

20

23

67

62

71

68

42

33
69

44

78

75

33

42

43

46

34

44

48

36 35

45

37

39

38

41

46

45

40

School Districts

Prepared By: BC Stats
October, 2008

British Columbia

70

79

62

68

69

64

63

71

61

5, Southeast Kootenay

6, Rocky Mountain

8, Kootenay Lake

10, Arrow Lakes

19, Revelstoke

20, Kootenay-Columbia

22, Vernon

23, Central Okanagan

27, Cariboo-Chilcotin

28, Quesnel

33, Chilliwack

34, Abbotsford

35, Langley

36, Surrey

37, Delta

38, Richmond

39, Vancouver

40, New Westminster

41, Burnaby

42, Maple Ridge-Pitt Meadows

43, Coquitlam

44, North Vancouver

45, West Vancouver

46, Sunshine Coast

47, Powell River

48, Howe Sound

49, Central Coast

50, Haida Qwaii/Queen Charlotte

51, Boundary

52, Prince Rupert

53, Okanagan Similkameen

54, Bulkley Valley

57, Prince George

58, Nicola-Similkameen

59, Peace River South

60, Peace River North

61, Greater Victoria

62, Sooke

63, Saanich

64, Gulf Islands

67, Okanagan Shaha

68, Nanaimo-Ladysmith

69, Qualicum

70, Alberni

71, Comox Valley

72, Campbell River

73, Kamloops/Thompson

74, Gold Trail

75, Mission

78, Fraser-Cascade

79, Cowichan Valley

81, Fort Nelson

82, Coast Mountains

83, Okanagan-Shuswap

84, Vancouver Island West

85, Vancouver Island North

87, Stikine

91, Nechako Lakes

92, Nisga'a

Page 71 of 153



 

 

  

  

Appendices 

 

 

Appendix 1: Required communications  

 

Appendix 2: Auditors’ Report 

 

Appendix 3: Management Representation Letter  

 

Appendix 4: Audit Quality and Risk Management  

 
 

Page 72 of 153



 

 
KPMG Audit Findings Report |   12 

 

Appendix 1: Required communications 

 

In accordance with professional standards, there are a number of communications that are required during the course of and 

upon completion of our audit. These include: 

 

 
Auditors’ report 

 
Management representation letter 

 The conclusion of our audit is set out in our draft auditors’ report as 

attached. 

In accordance with professional standards, copies of the management 

representation letter are provided to the Audit Committee. The management 

representation letter is attached. 

 

 
Engagement letter 

 The objectives of the audit, our responsibilities in carrying out our audit, 

as well as management’s responsibilities, are set out in the engagement 

letter and any subsequent amendment letters as provided by 

management. 

 

 

Page 73 of 153



 

 
KPMG Audit Findings Report |   13 

 

Appendix 2: Auditors’ Report 
To the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria), and 

To the Minister of Education, Province of British Columbia  

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) (the Entity), which comprise: 

• the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2019 

• the statement of operations for the year then ended 

• the statement of  changes in net financial assets (debt) for the year then ended 

• the statement of cash flows for the year then ended 

• and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies 

(Hereinafter referred to as the “financial statements”). 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements are prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the financial reporting provisions of Section 23.1 of the Budget 

Transparency and Accountability Act of the Province of British Columbia. 

Basis for Opinion  

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.  Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the “Auditors’ 

Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of our auditors’ report.   

We are independent of the Entity in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada and we have fulfilled our other 

ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.  

Emphasis of Matter – Financial Reporting Framework 

We draw attention to note 2 to the financial statements which describes the applicable financial reporting framework and the significant differences between the financial 

reporting framework and Canadian public sector accounting standards.  

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

Other Information 

Management is responsible for the other information. Other information comprises: 

 Unaudited Schedules 1-4 attached to the audited financial statements   

Page 74 of 153



 

KPMG Audit Findings Report |   14 

 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not and will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.  

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other 

information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.   

We obtained the Information, other than the financial statements and the auditors’ report thereon, included in the Unaudited Schedules 1-4 as at the date of this auditors’ report.   

If, based on the work we have performed on this other information, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact 

in the auditors’ report. 

We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the financial reporting provisions of Section 23.1 of the Budget and Transparency 

and Accountability Act of the Province of British Columbia and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial 

statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to 

going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Entity or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative 

but to do so. 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Entity’s financial reporting process. 

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 

issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion.  

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will 

always detect a material misstatement when it exists.  

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 

decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the 

audit. 

We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to 

those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.  

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 

expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Entity's internal control.  

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

Page 75 of 153



 

KPMG Audit Findings Report |   15 

 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 

uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Entity's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 

uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 

to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause 

the Entity to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including 

any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.   

Page 76 of 153



 

KPMG Audit Findings Report |   16 

 

Appendix 3: Management Representation Letter 
Date of Board approval of financial statements 

 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
We are writing at your request to confirm our understanding that your audit was for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the financial statements (hereinafter referred to as 
“financial statements”) of School District No. 61 ("the District"), as at and for the period June 30, 2019. 
 
General: 

We confirm that the representations we make in this letter are in accordance with the definitions as set out in Attachment I to this letter. 

We also confirm that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, having made such inquiries as we considered necessary for the purpose of appropriately 
informing ourselves: 

RESPONSIBILITIES: 

1) We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the engagement letter dated August 9, 2018, including for: 

a) the preparation of the financial statements and believe that these financial statements have been prepared and present fairly in accordance with 
the relevant financial reporting framework. 

b) providing you with all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of the financial statements (“relevant information”), such 
as financial records, documentation and other matters, including: 

— the names of all related parties and information regarding all relationships and transactions with related parties;   

— the complete minutes of meetings, or summaries of actions of recent meetings for which minutes have not yet been prepared, of the Board of 
Trustees and  committees of the Board of Trustees that may affect the financial statements. All significant actions are included in such 
summaries. 

c) providing you with unrestricted access to such relevant information. 

d) providing you with complete responses to all enquiries made by you during the engagement. 

e) providing you with additional information that you may request from us for the purpose of the engagement. 

f) providing you with unrestricted access to persons within the Entity from whom you determined it necessary to obtain audit evidence. 

Page 77 of 153



 

KPMG Audit Findings Report |   17 

 

g) such internal control as we determined is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. We also acknowledge and understand that we are responsible for the design, implementation and maintenance of 
internal control to prevent and detect fraud. 

h) ensuring that all transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the financial statements. 

i) ensuring that internal auditors providing direct assistance to you, if any, were instructed to follow your instructions and that we, and others within 
the entity, did not intervene in the work the internal auditors performed for you. 

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING: 

2) We have communicated to you all deficiencies in the design and implementation or maintenance of internal control over financial reporting of which we 
are aware. 

FRAUD & NON-COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS: 

3) We have disclosed to you: 

a) the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud. 

b) all information in relation to fraud or suspected fraud that we are aware of that involves:  

— management; 

— employees who have significant roles in internal control over financial reporting; or  

— others 

where such fraud or suspected fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

c) all information in relation to allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting the financial statements, communicated by employees, former 
employees, analysts, regulators, or others. 

d) all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations, including all aspects of contractual agreements, 
whose effects should be considered when preparing financial statements. 

e) all known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects should be considered when preparing the financial statements. 

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS: 

4) All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which the relevant financial reporting framework requires adjustment or disclosure 
in the financial statements have been adjusted or disclosed. 

RELATED PARTIES: 

5) We have disclosed to you the identity of the Entity’s related parties. 

6) We have disclosed to you all the related party relationships and transactions/balances of which we are aware. 

 

Page 78 of 153



 

KPMG Audit Findings Report |   18 

 

7) All related party relationships and transactions/balances have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the relevant financial 
reporting framework. 

EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS: 

8) The employee future benefits costs and obligations have been determined, accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the financial reporting 
framework. 

9) All arrangements (contractual or otherwise) by which programs have been established to provide employee benefits have been disclosed to you and 
included in the determination of employee future benefits costs and obligations. 

10) The assumptions included in the actuarial valuation are those that management instructed Mercer to use in computing amounts to be used by the 
Entity in determining non-pension post employment benefit costs and obligations and in making required disclosures in the above-named financial 
statements, in accordance with the relevant financial reporting framework 

11) The source data and plan provisions provided to the actuary for preparation of the actuarial valuation are accurate and complete. 

ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS: 

12) The District has appropriately recognized, measured and disclosed liabilities for contaminated sites in the financial statements. 

ESTIMATES: 

13) Measurement methods and significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those measured at fair value, are 
reasonable. 

GOING CONCERN: 

14) We have provided you with all information relevant to the use of the going concern assumption in the financial statements. 

15) We confirm that we are not aware of material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Entity’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. 

OTHER: 

16) The amounts reported as differences between accounting for Non-Provincial restricted contributions in accordance with the Restricted Contributions 
Regulation as compared to Public Sector Accounting Standards for the purpose of reporting to the Office of the Auditor General are complete and 
accurate. 

 

Page 79 of 153



 

KPMG Audit Findings Report |   19 

 

Yours very truly, 
SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 61 (GREATER VICTORIA) 

 

_______________________________________ 
By: Katrina Stride, Acting Secretary-Treasurer 

 

_______________________________________ 

By: Julie Lutner, Director of Finance, Budgets & Financial Reporting  

Page 80 of 153



 

KPMG Audit Findings Report |   20 

 

Appendix 4: Audit Quality and Risk Management 

 

KPMG maintains a system of quality control designed to reflect our drive and determination to deliver independent, unbiased 

advice and opinions, and also meet the requirements of Canadian professional standards. 

Quality control is fundamental to our business and is the responsibility of every partner and employee. The following diagram 

summarizes the six key elements of our quality control system. 

Visit our Audit Quality Resources page for more information including access to our most recent Audit Quality and Transparency Report. 

 Other controls include: 

 Before the firm issues its audit 

report, the Engagement Quality 

Control Reviewer reviews the 

appropriateness of key elements of 

publicly listed client audits 

 Technical department and specialist 

resources provide real-time support 

to audit teams in the field 

We conduct regular reviews of 

engagements and partners. Review 

teams are independent and the work of 

every audit partner is reviewed at least 

once every three years. 

We have policies and guidance to 

ensure that work performed by 

engagement personnel meets applicable 

professional standards, regulatory 

requirements and the firm’s standards of 

quality. 

 All KPMG partners and staff are 

required to act with integrity and 

objectivity and comply with 

applicable laws, regulations and 

professional standards at all times. 

 We do not offer services that would impair 

our independence. 

The processes we employ to help retain  

and develop people include: 

 Assignment based on skills and 

experience 

 Rotation of partners 

 Performance evaluation 

 Development and training 

 Appropriate supervision and coaching 

We have policies and procedures for 

deciding whether to accept or continue a 

client relationship or to perform a specific 

engagement for that client. 

Existing audit relationships are reviewed 

annually and evaluated to identify instances 

where we should discontinue our 

professional association with the client. 

 

Independence, 

integrity, ethics 

and objectivity 

Personnel 

management 

Acceptance & 

continuance of 

clients / 

engagements 

Engagement 

performance 

standards 

Other risk 

management 

quality 

controls 

Independent 

monitoring 

KPMG 

Audit quality 

and risk 

management 

Page 81 of 153

https://home.kpmg.com/ca/en/home/services/audit/audit-quality-resources.html
https://home.kpmg/content/dam/kpmg/ca/pdf/2019/02/kpmg-audit-quality-2018.pdf


 

 

 
 

 
 

kpmg.ca/audit 

 
 

 
KPMG LLP, an Audit, Tax and Advisory firm (kpmg.ca) and a Canadian limited liability partnership established under the laws of Ontario, is the Canadian 

member firm of KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”).  

KPMG member firms around the world have 174,000 professionals, in 155 countries. 

The independent member firms of the KPMG network are affiliated with KPMG International, a Swiss entity. Each KPMG firm is a legally distinct and separate 

entity, and describes itself as such. 

© 2019 KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with 

KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.  

Page 82 of 153

https://home.kpmg.com/ca/en/home/services/audit.html
https://www.instagram.com/kpmgcanada/
https://www.instagram.com/kpmgcanada/
https://www.youtube.com/user/KPMGCanada
https://www.youtube.com/user/KPMGCanada
https://twitter.com/kpmg_canada
https://twitter.com/kpmg_canada
https://www.linkedin.com/company/kpmg-canada/
https://www.linkedin.com/company/kpmg-canada/


Page 83 of 153



Page 84 of 153



Page 85 of 153



Page 86 of 153



Page 87 of 153



Page 88 of 153



Page 89 of 153



Page 90 of 153



Page 91 of 153



Page 92 of 153



Page 93 of 153



Page 94 of 153



Page 95 of 153



Page 96 of 153



Page 97 of 153



Page 98 of 153



Page 99 of 153



Page 100 of 153



Page 101 of 153



Page 102 of 153



Page 103 of 153



Page 104 of 153



Page 105 of 153



Page 106 of 153



Page 107 of 153



Page 108 of 153



Page 109 of 153



Page 110 of 153



Page 111 of 153



Page 112 of 153



Page 113 of 153



Page 114 of 153



Page 115 of 153



Page 116 of 153



Page 117 of 153



Page 118 of 153



Page 119 of 153



 
 
 

 

 

 

 

School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 
556 Boleskine Road, Victoria, BC  V8Z 1E8 
Phone (250) 475-4106   Fax (250) 475-4112 Katrina Stride – Acting Secretary-Treasurer 

Office of the 
Secretary-Treasurer 

TO:  Audit Committee 

FROM:  Katrina Stride, Acting Secretary-Treasurer 

DATE:  September 16, 2019 

RE:  2018-2019 Statement of Financial Information 

______________________________________________________________________________________ 

In accordance with the Financial Information Act  (the “Act”), each school district is required to prepare a 

Statement of Financial Information (SOFI) for each fiscal year within six months of the end of the fiscal year.  

The Act, together with the related regulation and directive, prescribes the information that is required to be 

included in the statement.   

The required schedules have been completed for the year ended June 30, 2019: 

 
 i) Management Report 

 ii) Schedule of Debts (nil report) 

 iii) Schedule of Guarantee and Indemnity Agreements (nil report) 

 iv) Schedule of Remuneration and Expenses 

 v) Statement of Severance Agreements 

 vi) Schedule of Payments for the Provision of Goods and Services 

 vii) Comparison of Scheduled Payments to the Audited Financial Statement Expenditures 

 viii) School District Audited Financial Statements 

 
The Schedule of Remuneration and Expenses individually lists employees with remuneration exceeding 

$75,000.  Section 6 of the Financial Information Regulation defines remuneration to include any form of salary, 

wages, taxable benefits, payment into trust or any form of income deferral paid by the District to an employee, 

or on behalf of an employee, whether or not such remuneration is reported under the Income Tax Act 

(Canada).  Remuneration does not include anything payable under a severance agreement.   

 
Taxable benefits include the employer-paid portion of certain employee benefits defined by the Canada 
Revenue Agency, such as group life insurance premiums.   

Page 120 of 153



P a g e  | 2 

 
Section 6 of the Financial Information Regulation defines expenses to include travel expenses, 
memberships, tuition, relocation, extraordinary hiring expenses, registration fees and similar amounts paid 
directly to an employee, or to a third party on behalf of the employee.  Expenses are not limited to those 
generally perceived as perquisites, or bestowing personal benefit, and may include expenditures required 
for employees to perform their job functions.  Expenses exclude benefits of a general nature applicable to all 
employees pursuant to an agreement, such as medical, dental, counselling, insurance and similar plans.   
 
The Schedule of Payments for the Provision of Goods and Services lists payments made to third parties for 
the supply of goods and services to the School District in excess of $25,000. 
 

Recommended Motion: 

That the Board of Education of School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) approve the 
schedules as required by the Financial Information Act for the period July 1, 2018 to 
June 30, 2019. 

 

Page 121 of 153



Page 122 of 153



Page 123 of 153



Page 124 of 153



Page 125 of 153



Page 126 of 153



Page 127 of 153



Page 128 of 153



Page 129 of 153



Page 130 of 153



Page 131 of 153



Page 132 of 153



Page 133 of 153



Page 134 of 153



Page 135 of 153



Page 136 of 153



Page 137 of 153



Page 138 of 153



Page 139 of 153



Page 140 of 153



Page 141 of 153



Page 142 of 153



Page 143 of 153



Page 144 of 153



Page 145 of 153



Page 146 of 153



Page 147 of 153



Page 148 of 153



Page 149 of 153



 
 

 

School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 

556 Boleskine Road, Victoria, BC  V8Z 1E8 

Phone (250) 475-4162   Fax (250) 475-4112 Shelley Green - Superintendent 

 

Office of the 

Superintendent 

TO: The Board of Education 
 
FROM: Shelley Green, Superintendent of Schools 
 
RE: Superintendent’s Report 
     
DATE: September 23, 2019 
 

 
There are a number of items that the Superintendent wishes to bring to the attention of the Board of 
Education. 
 
Events and Meetings 
The Superintendent has attended a number of events and met with a number of individuals since the last 
Board meeting.  These have included: 
 

 District Committees 
o Audit Committee 

 

 Additional Meetings and Events 
o Braefoot Elementary  
o BCSSA Summer Leadership Academy 
o CUPE382 
o CUPE 947 
o District Leadership Meeting 
o Essential Practices of Cybersecurity Engagement 
o Generative Dialogue/Coaching 
o GVTA 
o International Student Program 
o Media Training 
o Professional Relations Committee (GVTA) 
o Secretary-Treasurer Hiring Process 
o Special Board Meeting – Boundary Review 
o Strategic Planning & Good Governance Meetings  
o TOC District Orientation  
o Tri-District Superintendents Meeting 
o VPVPA 

Page 150 of 153



 
 

 

School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 
556 Boleskine Road, Victoria, BC  V8Z 1E8 
Phone (250) 475-4106   Fax (250) 475-4112 Deb Whitten – Deputy Superintendent 

 
 
To: Board of Education 
 
From:  Deb Whitten, Deputy Superintendent 
 
Date: September 23, 2019 
 
RE: Anaphylaxis Aggregate Report  

 

 
As per Regulation 5141.21 Anaphylaxis, Principals report information on each anaphylactic incident to the 
Board of Education via the Superintendent in aggregate form using the School Protection Program Incident 
Report.  
 
As such, there were two anaphylactic incidents reported during the 2018-2019 school year.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 151 of 153



 
 

 

School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 
556 Boleskine Road, Victoria, BC  V8Z 1E8 
Phone (250) 475-4163   Fax (250) 475-4112 Shelley Green - Superintendent 

 

Office of the 
Superintendent 

 

TO: The Board of Education 
 
FROM: Shelley Green, Superintendent of Schools 
 
RE: Trustees’ Questions 
     
DATE: September 23, 2019 
 

 
During this portion of the Board Meeting, Trustees will have the opportunity to raise questions.  Where possible, 

an immediate response will be provided.  In the event that research is necessary before a response is provided, 

the matter will be postponed until a researched response can be provided. 

 

 

Page 152 of 153



 
 

 

School District No. 61 (Greater Victoria) 
556 Boleskine Road, Victoria, BC  V8Z 1E8 
Phone (250) 475-4106   Fax (250) 475-4112 Katrina Stride  - Acting Secretary Treasurer 

 
TO:  Board of Education 

FROM:  Katrina Stride, Acting Secretary-Treasurer 

DATE:  September 23, 2019 

RE:  Monthly Report 

______________________________________________________________________________________ 

The purpose of this memo is to update the Board on some of the activities of the Secretary-Treasurer’s office 

since the June Board meeting. 

 Meetings with community partners to renew joint-use and lease agreements 
 Meeting with BCPSEA  
 Fiscal year-end 
 Financial audit  
 Strategic planning and governance meetings 
 Meetings with municipal partners on SJ Burnside and Vic High projects 
 eSCRIBE training and implementation 
 Staffing Committee meetings 
 Audit Committee meeting 
 Boundary Review Team meeting 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 153 of 153


	Agenda
	A.2.a Approval of the June 19, 2019 Special Board Minutes
	A.2.b Approval of the June 24, 2019 Regular Board Minutes
	A.2.c Approval of the June 25, 2019 Special Board Minutes
	B.1 Letter from the District of Saanich re Greater Victoria Crossing Guard Program
	B.2 Letter from the Town of View Royal re Greater Victoria Crossing Guard Program
	C.1 Chair's Report
	C.2.a Trustee Whiteaker
	C.2.b Trustee Duncan - BCSTA Trustee Representative Update
	D.1.a Minutes from the September 9, 2019 meeting- Information only
	D.2.a Minutes from the September 16, 2019 meeting- Information only
	D.2.b.a Regulation 3323, Purchasing Services
	D.2.b.a Regulation 3323, Purchasing Services
	D.3 Audit Committee Report
	D.3 Audit Committee Report
	D.3 Audit Committee Report
	D.3 Audit Committee Report
	D.3 Audit Committee Report
	D.3 Audit Committee Report
	E.1.a Monthly Report
	E.1.b Anaphylaxis Aggregate Report
	E.1.c Trustee Questions
	E.2.a Monthly Report

